HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

To,

Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors of Centrum Financial Services Limited

We, Haribhakti & Co. LLP., have audited the Balance Sheet Centrum Financial Services
Limited (‘the Company’) as at March 31, 2020 and also the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Ind AS financial
statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information and issued our audit report thereen with unmodified audit opinion dated June
11, 2020, These Ind AS financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility was to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial
statements based on our audit. Our audit was conducted in the manner specified in
“Auditor’s Respensibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements” section of the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

The compliance with the requirements of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company -Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 , issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘the
Bank’) amended from time to time, circulars and notifications in that regard(‘RBI
Directions’) is the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
report on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of Non-Banking Financial Companies
Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by the Bank and amended from
time to time (‘the Directions’) to the Board of Directors.

As required by the Directions, based on our audit referred to in paragraph 1 above and
based on the information and explanations given to us which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for this purpose, we report hereunder on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Directions:

i) The Company is engaged in the business of a Non-Banking Financial Institution
(‘NBFI'} as defined in section 45-lI{(a} of the Reserve Bank of India, Act 1934
{‘the Act’) during the year ended March 31, 2020. The Company is registered
with the Bank as NBFlI not accepting public deposits vide Certificate of
Registration (‘CoR') number B-13.01946 dated August 14, 2009 from the Bank,

ii) Based on the Principal Business Criteria (financial asset/income pattern) as on
March 31, 2020 determined by the Management in accordance with the audited
Ind AS financial statements for the year ended as on that date, the Company is
entitled to continue to hold such CoR.

i) The Company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid
down in RBI Directions.

iv) The Board of Directors of the Company have passed a resolution on April 23,
2019 stating that the Company has neither accepted public deposit nor would
accept any public deposit.

V) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
the Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year ended
March 31, 2020.

vi) The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind
AS”) specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
relevant rules issued there under from April 1, 2019 and the effective date of
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such transition is April 1, 2018. Such transition has been carried out from the
erstwhile Accounting Standards specified under the Companies Act, 2013,
(referred to as the “Previous GAAP"). The Company has complied with the RBI
Circular No. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No0.109/22.10.106/2019-20
dated March 13, 2020 with respect to Income recognition, accounting
standards, asset classification and impairment allowance.

vii) Since the Company is Systemically Important Non-deposit taking NBFCs as
defined in the RBI Directions :

{a) The capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the provisional return as on
March 31, 2020 submitted to the Bank in form NBS- 7, has been correctly
arrived at and such ratio is in compliance with the minimum CRAR prescribed
by the Bank;

(b) The Company has furnished to the Bank the provisional annual statement
of capital funds, risk assets/exposures and risk asset ratio (NBS-7) within the
stipulated period.

viti) The Company is not a ‘Non-Banking Financial Company- Micro Finance
Institution (NBFC-MF1) as specified under para 3{xx) of the RBI Directions,
accordingly the question of commenting on whether the Company has been
correctly classified as NBFC- MFI as defined in the RBI Directions does not
arise,

4. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring
after the date of this report.

5. This report is issued solely for reporting on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Directions, to the Board of Directors and is not to be used or distributed for any other
purpose,

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W1 qasr

Sumant Sakhardande
Partner

/Mamb’e?ship No. 034828
UDIN: 20034828AAAACQ2414
Place: Mumbai

~ « Date: June 11, 2020
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section in the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of Centrum Financial Services Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2020]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information
and explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the
normal course of audit, we report that:

(1)
{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b} During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the
management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

{c) The title deeds of immovable properties recorded as fixed assets (Refer Note. 11 to the
Ind AS financial statements) in the books of account of the Company are held in the
name of the Company.

(if) The Company is a Non- Banking Finance Company, primarily engaged in the business of

lending and does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii} of the
Order are not applicable.

(iiiy The Company has granted unsecured loans, to companies, firms, Limited Liability

Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act.

{a} The terms and conditions of the aforesaid loans granted by the Company are not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

{b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest in respect of such
loans has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts of principal amounts and
interest are regular.

(€} In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no overdue amount in respect of loans
granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or other parties listed in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

{iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 {1) of the Act in
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respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities as
applicable. Further, as the Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company engaged in the
business of financing, the provision of section 186 [except for subsection {1)] are not
applicable to the Company.
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(v} In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3({v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the
praducts of the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules
framed there under.

(vii)

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, goods and services tax (GST}),
customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, except that
there have been slight delay in one month in payment of TDS. During the year 2017-18,
sales tax, value added tax, service tax and duty of excise subsumed in GST and are
accordingly reported under G5T.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, GST,
customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable. However, undisputed dues in respect of Professional tax, which were
outstanding, at the year end for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable amounting to Rs. 32,040/- is still unpaid as the Professional Tax
registration in the various states is not cbtained.

{b) There are no dues with respect to income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax,
GST, customs duty, excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute, except :

Name of Nature of Amount Period to | Forum where
the statute dues in R which the dispute is
(in Rs.) amount pending
relates
Income Tax | Income Tax | 18,62,870 AY 2010-11 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Income Tax | 61,22,030* AY 2011-12 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Income Tax | 1,84,27,952* | AY 2012-13 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax
{Appeals)

*Net of Duties paid under protest

(viii) During the year, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to
financial institution, bank, government or dues to debenture holder.

(ix} The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer. In
our opinion on overall examination of the Balance Sheet, the Company has prima facie
utilized the moneys raised by way of debt instruments and the term loans during the year
were applied for the purposes for which they were raised, though idle/ surplus funds which
were not required for immediate utilization were gainfully invested in liquid assets payable
on demand,
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(x}

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

During the course of our examination of the bocks and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the
management.

Managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In aur opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in
the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, clause 3(xiv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them during the year and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable.

The Company is required to be registered under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and the registration has been obtained by the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

é\umant Sakhardande e = _M‘.\‘
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Membership No. 034828
UDIN: 20034828AAAACP5797
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 11, 2020
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Centrum Financial Services Limited
on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Centrum
Financial Services Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is respensible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting recaords, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
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Meaning of internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI,

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande

Par

Membership No. 034828
UDIN : 20034828AAAACPS797
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Centrum Financial Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Centrum Financial Services Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “Ind AS financial statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed
under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit
(including other comprehensive income}, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current year., These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

financial statements)

Transition to Ind AS accounting framework {as described in Note 2.1 and 54 of the Ind AS

The Company has adopted Ind AS from April 1,
2019 with an effective date of April 1, 2018
for such transition. For periods up to and
including the year ended March 31, 2019, the
Company had prepared and presented its
financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Standards prescribed under the
section 133 of the Act (Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, for transition to Ind AS, the
Company has prepared its financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2020, together
with the comparative financial information for
the previous year ended March 31, 2019 and
the opening Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2018
under Ind AS,

The transition has involved significant change
in the Company’s policies and processes for
financial reporting, including generation of
supportable  information and applying
estimates to inter alia determine impact of
Ind AS on accounting,

In view of the significant degree of
management judgment involved in
implementation of the Ind AS framework and
significance of the various disclosures, the
transition to Ind AS accounting framework has
been identified as an area of key focus in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements,

Our audit procedures included but were not
limited to the following:

» Assessed the Company’s process to identify the
impact of adoption and transition to Ind AS;

» Evaluated the design of internal controls and
tested the operating effectiveness of key
internal controls around the process of
preparation of Ind AS financial statements;

= Reviewed the mandatory and optional
exemptions and exceptions allowed by Ind AS
and availed by the Company in applying the first-
time adoption principles of Ind AS 101;

» Obtained an understanding of the governance
over the determination of key judgments;

« Evaluated and tested the key assumptions and
judgments adopted by management in line with
principles under Ind AS;

«» Assessed the disclosures made as required by
the relevant Ind AS; and

« Determined the appropriateness of the
methodologies and models used along with the
responsibility of the outputs.

statements)

Impairment of loans and advances {(as described in Note 6 and 53 of the Ind AS financial

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for
impairment of its loan receivables (designated
at amortised cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income) using the expected
credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL involves an
estimation of probability weighted loss on

financial instruments over their life,
considering reasonable and supportable
information about past events, current

conditions, and forecasts of future economic
conditions which could impact the credit

We have started our audit procedures with
understanding of the internal control
environment related to Impairment loss
allowance. Our procedures over internal
controls focused on recognition and
measurement of impairment loss allowance, We
assessed the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the selected key controls
implemented by the Company.

2014 from a firm Haribhakti & Co. FRN: 103523W)
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

financial statements)

Transition to Ind AS accounting framework {as described in Note 2.1 and 54 of the Ind AS

The Company has adopted Ind AS from April 1,
2019 with an effective date of April 1, 2018
for such transition. For periods up to and
including the year ended March 31, 2019, the
Company had prepared and presented its
financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Standards prescribed under the
section 133 of the Act (Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, for transition to Ind AS, the
Company has prepared its financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2020, together
with the comparative financial information for
the previous year ended March 31, 2019 and
the opening Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2018
under Ind AS,

The transition has involved significant change
in the Company’s policies and processes for
financial reporting, including generation of
supportable information and applying
estimates to inter alia determine impact of
Ind AS on accounting,

In view of the significant degree of
management judgment involved in
implementation of the Ind AS framework and
significance of the various disclosures, the
transition to Ind AS accounting framework has
been identified as an area of key focus in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements.

Qur audit procedures included but were not
limited to the following:

» Assessed the Company’s process to identify the
impact of adoption and transition to Ind AS;

» Evaluated the design of internal controls and
tested the operating effectiveness of key
internal controls around the process of
preparation of Ind AS financial statements;

» Reviewed the mandatory and optional
exemptions and exceptions allowed by Ind AS
and availed by the Company in applying the first-
time adoption principles of Ind AS 101;

» Obtained an understanding of the governance
over the determination of key judgments;

« Evaluated and tested the key assumptions and
judgments adopted by management in line with
principles under Ind AS;

« Assessed the disclosures made as required by
the relevant Ind AS; and

« Determined the appropriateness of the
methodologies and models used along with the
responsibility of the outputs.

statements)

Impairment of loans and advances (as described in Note 6 and 53 of the Ind AS financial

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for
impairment of its loan receivables (designated
at amortised cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income) using the expected
credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL involves an
estimation of probability weighted loss on

financial instruments over their life,
considering reasonable and supportable
information about past events, current

conditions, and forecasts of future economic
conditions which could impact the credit

We have started our audit procedures with
understanding of the internal control
environment related to Impairment loss
allowance. Our procedures over internal
controls focused on  recognition and
measurement of impairment loss allowance, We
assessed the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the selected key controls
implemented by the Company.
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quality of the Company’s loans and advances.
In the process, a significant degree of judgment
has been applied by the Management for:

s Staging of loans [i.e, classification in
‘significant increase in credit risk’
(‘SICR’) and ‘default’ categories];

e Grouping of barrowers based on
homogeneity by using appropriate
statistical techniques;

= Estimation of behavioral life;

+ Determining macro-economic factors
impacting credit quality of receivables;

» Estimation of losses for loan products
with no/minimal historical defaults.

Additional considerations on account of
COVID-19

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India circular
dated 27 March 2020 , April 17, 2020 and 23
May 2020 ('RBI circular') allowing lending
institutions to offer moratorium to borrowers
on payment of instalments falling due between
1 March 2020 and 31 May 2020, the Company
has extended moratorium to its borrowers in
accordance with its approved Board policy. In
Management’s view and considering the
guidance provided by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, providing moratorium to
borrowers at a mass scale, based on RBI
directives, by itself is not considered to result
in a SICR for such borrowers. The Company has
considered the moratorium and various other
measures taken by Government and regulators
and have assessed that no further provisioning
on account COVID 19 is required at this time in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, The impact
of COVID-19 is dypnamic, evolving, uncertain
and based on the current situation.

In view of the high degree of Management'’s
judgment involved in estimation of ECL,
accentuated by the COVID-19 pandemic,
impairment of loans and advances has been
identified as a key audit matter.

For loans and advances which are assessed for
impairment on a portfolio basis we performed
particularly the following procedures:

= We tested the reliability of key data inputs and
related management controls;

» We checked the stage classification as at the
balance sheet date as per the definition of
Default of the Company;

+ We recalculated the ECL provision for selected
samples;

« We have reviewed the process of the Company
to grant moratorium to the borrowers as per the
Regulatory Package announced by the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI). Further, we have relied on
the assumption of the management that there
will be no significant increase in the credit risk
in the cases where moratorium is given and that
the staging based on the days past due (DPD} will
be considered as per the RBI COVID-19
Regulatory Package. We have tested on samples
basis the DPD freeze for cases where
moratorium is provided and not provided in
accordance with RBlI COVID-19 Regulatory
Package;

« We have checked the provision on Loan Assets
as per IRACP norms as required under RBI
circular dated March 13, 2020. We have checked
the DPD and provision in accordance with the RBI
regulations in that regard further considering
the Regulatory Packages issued by RBI dated
March 27, 2020 and May 23, 2020 and RBI circular
dated April 17, 2020; and

« With respect to impact assessment on
provision for ECL on account of the impact of
COVID-19 pandemic, we broadly reviewed the
underlying assumptions and estimates used by
the management for the same as the extent of
impact is dependent on future developments
which are highly uncertain, we have primarily
relied on those assumptions and estimates.
These assumptions and estimates are a subject
matter of periodic review by the Company.

financial statements)

Impairment assessment of the carrying value of Goodwill (Refer Note 11.F to the Ind AS

The Company carries goodwill amounting to Rs.
1300.91 lakhs in its Ind AS financial statements
as at March 31, 2020. This goodwill was

Qur audit procedures included but were not
limited to the following:

2014 from a firm Haribhakti & Co. FRN: 103523W)
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recorded due to acquisition of Supply Chain
Finance business from L&T Finance Limited.

In terms with Ind AS 36, Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually at the CGU level, whereby
the carrying amount of the CGU (including
goodwill) is compared with the recoverable
amount of the CGU.

The Company applied book value multiple to
carrying value to arrive at the fair value and
also computed value in use which requires
management to make significant estimates and
assumptions related to forecasts of future
revenues and operating margins, and

discount rates. Higher of the fair value and
value in use is considered as recoverable
amount. Changes in these assumptions could
have a significant impact on either the
recoverable value, the amount of any goodwill

» We tested the Design, Implementation and
Operating effectiveness of controls over
impairment assessment process, including those
over the forecasts of future revenue, operating
margins and cash flows including selection of the
discount rate,

= Obtained an understanding of the process
followed by the management to determine the
recoverable amounts of cash generating units to
which the goodwill has been allocated.

+ Relied on independent valuation expert for
evaluating the assumptions around the key
drivers of the cash flow projections including
discount rates, expected growth rates and for
reasonableness of the valuation methodology
and book value multiple.

» Evaluated the objectivity and independence of
the specialist engaged by the Company and
reviewed the valuation reports issued by such
specialist.

impairment charge, or both. The recoverable
value of Supply Chain Finance Business
exceeded its carrying value as of the
measurement date and, therefore, no
impairment was recognised.

We focused this area because of the
judgmental factors involved in impairment
assessment, external economic factors on
account of COVID pandemic, and the significant
carrying value of the goodwill.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the Ind AS financial statements:

1. Note 53 to the Ind AS financial statements, which explains that the classification of assets overdue
but standard as on February 29 2020 where moratorium benefit has been granted, the staging of
those accounts as on March 31, 2020 is based on the days past due status as on February 29, 2020,
which will remain at a standstill during the moratorium period, in accordance with the Reserve Bank
of India COVID-19 Regulatory Package. Further, the Company considers that all the assets are
recoverable, Also, the extent to which COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s operations and
financial results is dependent on future developments, which are highly uncertain.

2. Nate 51 to the Ind AS financial statements, which pertains to the valuation of the investment in
the Additional Tier | Bond of Yes Bank amounting to Rs.500 Lakhs by the Company. This matter is
subjudice and the impact, if any, of the outcome is unascertainable.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
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Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it hecomes available and, in deing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income}, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judsments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were aperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reparting
process.

Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants Regn. No. AAC- 3768, a limited liability partnership registered in India {converted on 17th June,
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion., Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econamic decisions of users
taken on the basis of this Ind AS financial statements, As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence cbtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
T relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
W= ‘*"o relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

)
:‘E , where applicable, related safeguards,
%

r
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 included in these Ind AS financial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance
with the Companies {(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, whose report for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 dated
May 21, 2019 and May 16, 2018 respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on
transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 17, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Qrder, to the extent applicable.

{2} Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our cpinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

/"“_"\ e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020,

A 5§
qﬂf&d AC.(P\

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;
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f. With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure 2";

g. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in excess
of the limits laid down under section 197 of the Act. Details of remuneration paid in excess of
the limit laid down under this section are as given in Note 31 to the Ind AS financial statements;

k. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 ef the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 36 on Contingent Liabilities to the Ind AS financial
statements;

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iif) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

yakhardande

Partner
Membership No. 034828
UDIN: 20034828AAAACP5797
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 11, 2020
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Balance Sheet a3 at March 31, 2020

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Note As at As st As at
No. March 31,2020 March 31,2019 April 1,2018
ASSETS
(I} Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 5,624.56 4.704.11 6,269.61
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 2,220.30 : 5.564.54 4,122 80
(c) Derivative financial instruments 5 1,638.80 705.26 935.26
(d) Loans [ 84,388.70 1,09,287.84 33,959.89
{e) Investments 7 4,642,70 6,693,77 3,752.92
(f) Other financial assets 8 1,072.99 2,085.26 1,350.95
99,588.05 1,29,010.78 50,391.43
(II) Non Finncial Asseis
(2) Current tax assets (Net) 9 2,039.60 1,136.65 585,57
(b} Deferred tax Assets (Net) 215.94 600.36 33371
{c) Investment Property 19 3,397.34 345448 351095
{d) Property, Plant and Equipmeat 11 152.74 114.55 75.20
(e) Right-of-use assets 11 10.02 45.76 10.61
(f) Intangible assets under development - - 147.15
(g) Goodwill 11 1,442.02 1,442,02 141.11
(h) Other Intangible assets il 207.31 162.56 8.86
(i} Other non financial assets 12 390,58 237,83 29.50
7,856.05 7,194.21 4,842,66
Total Assets 1,07,444.10 1,36,204.99 55,234,09
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(D) Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative linancial instruments 5 3401.88 2.919.64 1.862.72
(b) Payables
i) Trade Payables 13
todal outstanding dues of tnicro enterprises and small eaterprises 3.94 51.03 6.91
total outstanding dues of creditors odher than micro enterprises and 220,23 115.66 116.46
small enterprises
i) Other Payables 14
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and swall enterprises - - -
total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and 12.15 - -
small enterprises
{¢) Debt secunties 15 52,076.26 36,996.77 16,485.63
{d) Boermrowngs (Ciher than Debt Seeuritics) 16 15,535.16 63,778.11 17,751.77
{e} Deposits 17 256.72 521.04 2,041.65
{f) Lease liabilities 34 101 47.25 10.81
{g) Other financial liabilities 19 1,142.60 1,600.69 39.50
76,661.95 1,05,030.19 38,315.85
(i) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilitics (Net) 9 #9.08 393.08 85.08
{b) Provisions 20 89,42 115.15 26,08
{c) Oiher non-financiai liabilities 21 676,66 1,03%.30 233.36
855,16 1,243.53 348.52
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 22 9,895.69 9,895.69 5,686.19
(b) Onher Equity 23 20,031.30 19,035.58 10.883.53
29,926.99 28,031.27 16,569.72
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,07.444.10 1,36,204.99 55,234.09
See accompanying notes to the financisl statements 1&2
For Haribhakti & Ce. LLP For and on behalf of thse Board of Directors of
Chariered Accountants Centrum Financial Services Limited

1CAI Firm Registration No, 103523 W/W 100048
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Note For the For the
No, year ended year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
N Revenue from Operation
(a) Interest income 24 14,197.54 9.428.67
(b) Rental incame 24.34 86.89
(c) Fee and comnission income 25 299.88 46.20
(d) Net gain an fair value change 26 90.16 567.62
(i) Other operating revenue 27 189,11 41.53
Total 14 801.03 10,170.91
(II)  Other income 28 140.52 27.07
Total Revenue 14,941.55 10,197.98
(It}  Expenses
(a} Finance costs 29 8,774.76 6.834.55
(b) Impairment on financial instruments i0 (8.76) 1.204.79
(c} Employee Benefils Expenses 3l 311267 211791
(d) Depreciation, amortization and impainmeni 11 16621 127.66
(¢) Others expenses 32 1.678.41 956.74
Total expenses 13,723.29 11,241,465
{I¥) Profit/ (loss} before tax for the period / year 1,218.26 (1.043.67)
(V)  Tax Expense: 33
(a) Current lax - 109.48
(b} Short ! (Excess) provision for earlicr years 8.99 S
(c) Deferred Tax 386,65 (268.74)
395.64 (159.26)
(VD) Proiit/ (loss) after tax for the period / year 822.62 (884.41)
{VIl) Other Comprehensive Income
(a} (I} Itemns that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement gains and (losses) on defined benefit obligations {net) (8.60) 7.44
(I1) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 1o profit or ioss (2.17) (2.07)
(10.77) 5.37
(VII) Total Comprehensive Income for the period / year B11.85 (879.04)
(I1X) Paid-up cquity share capital (face valuc Rs. 10 each) 9.895.69 9.895.69
(X)  Earnings per equity sharc in Rupces (Face value Rs. 10 each)
Basic i3 0.83 {1.13)
Diluted 35 0.82 (1.15)
See accompanying notes to Lthe financial statements
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP ~ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Acconntants Centrum Financial Services Limited
ICA1 Finin Registration No.103523 W/W100048
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

A Cash flow from pperating activities

Profit before tax

Adfustments for

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment on financial instruments

Net gain on fair value change

Profit / Loss on sale of fixed assets
Employees stock option provision

Rental income

[nterest subsidy- On market linked debentures

Unrealised Gain on Option
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Add r (Less): Adjustments for working capiiul changes
Loans
Other financial assets
Other non financial assets
Other Bank balances
Derivative financial instrument
Trade and other Payables
Other financial liability
Interest Accrued on Borrowings

Non financial liabilities and provisions
-

Cash used in operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash used in operating activitics -A

B Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and Goodwitl
Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Purchase of investments & invesunent property

Proceeds from sale of investments

Dividend on investments

Rental income on Investment property

Net cash generated from / {used in) investing activities - B
C  Cash flow from financing activitics

Proceeds from issue Equity shares (incl. Securities Premium)
Proceeds from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Proceeds from Depasits & borrowings (other than Debt securitics)
Repayment of Deposits & borcowings (other than Debt seeurities)

Proceeds / (Repayment) of short term borrowing {net)

Net cash generated from financing activities - C

For the year ended For the year eaded
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2012
1.218.26 {1,043.67)
166.21 127.66
(8.76) 1,204.7%
(90.16) (567.62)
0.93 s
155.23 144.57
(24.34} (86.39)
5 588.68
(44.26) 180.62
1373.11 548.14
24,899.96 (76,517.53)
982.27 (704.31)
(152.75) (208.33)
335350 (1,447.46)
(407.04) 1,106.30
71.63 43.32
{458.09) 1,560.79
(2,316.39) 201.30
(412.52) 898.57
26,934.08 (74,519.21)
(911.97} {660.54)
26,022.11 (75,179.75)
(157.95) (1,407.05)
0.22 -
(1,877.67) (6,258.00)
4,020.79 3,884.84
24.34 86.89
2,009.73 (3,693.32)
- 12,490.86
29,186.55 25,113.34
(11,537.23) (5.265.86)
3,743.08 46,438.70
(50,539.23) (1,520.62)
{29,146.83) 77,306.42



Centrum Financial Services Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

Net increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+()

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year

Notes:
i) Compouents of Cash and Cash Equivalents included above
Particulars
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 3)
Less: Bank overdraft (refer note 16.5)
Total
ii) Non Cash Investing Activity
Particulars

Impact on fair valuation on net assets acquired through business combination
Acquisition of right of use assets (refer note no 11)

Total

Particulars

Interest Received
Interest Paid

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019
(1,114.99) (1,566.65)
4,702.24 6,268.90
3,587.25 4,702.24
March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019
5,624.56 4,704.11
(2.037.31) (187
3,587.25 4,702,24
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
- 1.92
5 46,09
- 48.01
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
13,399.35 9,087.16
(9,420.04) {4,631.25})

iv) Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™ as specified in the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

For Haribbakti & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W/W 100048

L D

umant Sakhardande
ariner

Membership No 0343828
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Mumbai
June 11, 2020

Shailendra p?e
Director
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Managing Director and CEQ
DIN: 07592235
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Chuef Financial Officer Conipany Secrotary
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31, 2020

{(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

1

2.1

2.1.a

2.Lb

Background

Centrum Financial Services Limited (the 'Company’) is a Company domiciled in India and incorporated on 27 January
1993 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, The Company has received a certificate of registration from
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI') on 14 August 2009 to carry on the business of Non- Banking Financial Institution
(NBFC') activities without accepting public deposits having registration number - B-13.01946.

The Company has listed its debt on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and is registered with Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA) having Corporate Identification number (CIN) -'U65910MH1993PLC192085.

The registered office is situated at 2nd Floor, Bombay Mutual Building, Dr. D.N. Road, Fort, Mumbai-400001.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 were approved for issue in accordance
with the resolution of the Board of Directors on Jun 11, 2020.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ins As)

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers
conferred by section 133 read with sub-section (1) of section 210A of the Companies Act, 2013. In addition, the
guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied along
with compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment. Any upplication
guidance/clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/
applicable.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 of the Company is the first fiaancial siatements prepared in
compliance with Ind AS. The date of trancition to Ind AS is April 1, 2018.

The financial statements upto the year ended March 31, 2019, were prepared in accordance with the accounting
standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (“previous GAAP”) and other relevant
provisions of the Act. The figures for the year ended March 31, 2019 have now been restated under Ind AS to provide
comparability. Refer Note 54 for the details of first-time adoption exemptions availed by the Company.

Basis of preparation , .

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the certain financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value, assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost to sell, net defined Lerefit
liability/assets and share based paymants.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to

the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or licbilities that the Company can
access at reporting date

*Level 2 inputs'are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observabie for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities
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(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

2.1.¢g

2.1.h

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit
and loss. Amortisation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of
Profit and Loss from / upto the date of acquisition/sale.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets comprising of software are amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of 6 years, unless it has a shorter useful life.

Goodwill represents excess of the cost of portfolio acquisition over the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities. Goodwill paid on acquisition of portfolio is included in intangible assets. Goodwill recognized is tested for
impairment annually and when there are indications that the carrying amount may exceed the recoverable amount.

Intangible assets under development
It includes assets not ready for the intended use and are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related
incidental expenses.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties that are held for long-term rentals yields or for capital appreciation. Investment
properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their useful lives. Investment properties
generally have useful lives of 60 years. The useful life has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by
the management expert.

Though the company measures the investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of the investment
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed off or when they are permanently
withdrawn from their use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Impairment of non-financial assets

As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment property and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such
indication exists, the PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the
impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested tor impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication then the asset may be
impaired.

Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time val
adjusted.
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2.1.¢

2.1.4d

2.1.e

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the
Division III to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) applicable for Non- Banking Finance Companies
(“NBFC”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7
“Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of
Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial
statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Ind As and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to nearest Rupee as permitted
by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee to two decimal places.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and depreciation

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at 1st April, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price
and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to
acquisition of PPE which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent
they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of PPE are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets as prescribed in
Schedule 1T of the Act except some cases. The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of tangible
assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

Particulars Estimated useful life according to the Company
Office equipments 3 Years

Computer and accessories 3 Years

Com.puter software 6 Years

Vehicles | 8 Years

Furniture and fixtures 10 Years

Building 60 Years

Property, plant and equipment having an original cost up to INR 3,000 individually are depreciated in the year of
purchase.

Intangible assets
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Intangible Assets
recognised as at 1st April, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
the intangible assets. -~
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2.1.i

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficit
is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For this purpose, the impairment loss recognized in
respect of a cash generating unit is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill ailocated to such cash
generating unit and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets of the cash generating unit on a pro-rata
basis.

Revenue recognition

Interest income

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL. The ‘effective interest
rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all transaction cost and fees that are incremental and directly attributable to the
acquisition of a financial asset.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial
assets (l.e. at the amortized cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For
credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortized cost of the credit-
impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)). The
Company assesses the collectability of the interest on credit impaired assets at each reporting date. Based on the
outcome of such assessment, the Interest income accrued on credit impaired financial assets are either accounted for as
income or written off.

Income from bill discounting is recognised over the tenure of the instrument so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
return.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date. It is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity. Amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

Syndication fees

Syndication fees is accounted over the period as customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the
performance obligations are completed based on achievement of milestones as per the mandates/agreement with the
clients or terms confirmed and agreed by the client.

Fees and commission income

Fees such as consultancy fees, referral fees and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral
part of EIR and are recognised on accrual basis based on contractual terms. Processing fees earned on Supply Chain
Finance Business is recognised on accrual basis and does not form part of EIR as it being short term in nature.

Rental income
Rental income is recognized over a period of time as and when accrued as per the terms of the contract,

Net Gain/Loss on fair value changes
Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss (refer Note
26), held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net
gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes” under Revenue from operations.and if
there is a net loss the same is disclosed under “Expenses” in the statement of Profit and Loss. COLLDS,

PAA LR
o - .
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Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt instruments measured
at FVOCI is recognised in net gain / loss on fair value changes. As at the reporting date the Company does not have any
financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt instruments measured at FVOCI.

However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is presented separately
under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other operational revenue
Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognized
when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

Other income and expenses
Other income and expenses are recognised in the period in which they occur.

Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the
use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liabilities are remeasured at fair value at the balance sheet date
with the corresponding impact considered in the statement of profit and loss as interest charge/ income.

classified as financing cash flows.
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2.1k

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts
existing on April 1, 2018 using the modified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained
earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value
of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its carrying amount as if
the standard had been applied since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Refer Note 34 for the details of impact on transition.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a
similar end date

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease
term on the date of initial application

3. Excluded ths initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application

4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS
116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (other than trade receivables) or financial liability at its
fair value plus or minus, transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial asset or financial liability (other than financial asset or financial liability carried at fair value through profit or
loss). Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent meusurement

Financial assets are classified into three categories:

+ fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);

+ fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or
» amortised cost.
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The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
including contractual cash flows.

For debt instruments, classification will depend on the business model in which the debt is held.

For equity instruments, classification will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The classification requirements of financial assets are described below:

Debt instruments
Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer's perspective.

Business model: The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows.
That is, whether the Company's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows from the sale of asset. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial
assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and
measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Company in determining the business model for a Company of assets
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how risks are assessed and managed.
Securities held for trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio of
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking. These securities are classified in the 'other' business model and measured at FVTPL. The business model
assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case' scenarios into account.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows
and sell, the Company assesses whether the financial instruments' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest (the 'SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are
consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit
risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement.

Based on these factors, the Company classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three measurement
categories:

Amortised cost: Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where business model of those
cash flows represents solely payment of principal and interest ('SPPI'), and that are not designated at FVTPL, are
measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance
recognised and measured. Interest income from these financial assets are recognised using the effective interest rate
method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets are measured at FVOCI when the
instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.

FVOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due 1o changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. On derecognition,
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Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVTPL. Financial assets designated at FVTPL are carried in the Balance sheet at fair value with net
changes in fair value presented as other (gains)/losses in Statement of profit or loss. Interest income on financial assets
classified as FVTPL is not recognised in net gain/(loss) on fair value changes and is recognised separately as interest
income.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all its
liabilities. The Company subsequently measures all equity investments under the scope of Ind AS 109 at fair value.
Changes in the fair value of these instruments are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of

impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTPL are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI, loans and advances and on exposure arising from loan commitments. The
Company recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date.

The measurement of ECL reflects:

» An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

« The time value of money;

» Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The method and significant judgments used while computing the expected credit losses and information about the
exposure at default, probability of default and loss given default have been set out in note 46B (Risk Management).

Write-off policy
The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and
has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Financial liabilities

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
This classification is applied to derivatives and financial liabilities held for trading and other financial liabilities
designated as such at initial recognition.

Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented partially in other
comprehensive income (the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is not attributable to changes in market
conditions that give rise to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair value of
the liability).

Derecognition of financiul liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Reclassification of financial instrument

The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those as
The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following.the change. Such
expected to be very infrequent. s L
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"

After initial recognition, equity instruments and financial liabilities are not reclassified.

Derivatives
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently measured at fair value.

Embedded derivatives

The embedded derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

» their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract:
> a separate instrument with the same terms would meet the definition of a derivative;

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non- derivative host
contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a standalone
derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the
contract to be modified according to an index of prices or rates or other variable. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss unless the Company chooses to designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or
loss.

Certain market linked non-convertible debentures (MLDs) issued by the Company have returns linked to non- interest
related benchmarks. Embedded derivative component of such debentures are separately accounted for at fair value and
host contract. The Company hedges the risk of variable payout by taking positions in futures & options of Nifty 50
Index. Further, the fair valuation of the MLDs for initial recognition of embedded derivatives and borrowings
components as at the date of issue is done considering adjustment to the put/call contracts of Nifty 50 Index, thereby
arriving at cost of borrowings. Any gain/loss on these hedge positions are netted against with interest expenses on MLD
and resultant net loss/gain is recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss after considering the mark to market position of
the options at the balance sheet date.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and transaction costs that
are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). i

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair value, being the premium received.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial inswuments, such as investments and derivatives at fair values at each Balance Sheet
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The princiff
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
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2.1.m

2.1.n

2.1.0

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities (for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements) are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative
instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets
held for disposal in discontinued operations.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to
be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the
major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, short-term deposits and highly liquid investments with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible in cash and subject to insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method. Borrowing costs net of any
investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is
ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are a defined contribution scheme and the contributions
are charged to the statement of protit and loss of the year when the contribution to the fund is due. There
are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund.
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Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation carried out by
an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method made at the end of the financial year. The Company makes
contribution to a scheme administered by an Insurance Company approved by the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority of India (IRDAT) to discharge the gratuity liability to the employees. The Company records its
gratuity liability based on an actuarial valuation made by an independent actuary as at the year end. Provisions made
for the funded amount are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized directly in the other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss in the subsequent periods.

Long term compensated absences

The Company’s liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of valuations as at the
balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and
losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognized
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company presents the provision for compensated absences under
provisions in the balance sheet.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1916 adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated based on the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate based on amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that atfccts neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the Balance Sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

current tax liabilities, and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation autherity, and the
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. L
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2.1.r

2.1.s

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax paid, except:

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable.

ii. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Employee stock option scheme (ESOP)

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services that are granted by the ultimate
parent Company are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed over the vesting period, based on
the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the 'Employee Stock Options reserve'. In
cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period, the Company treats each instalments
as a separate grant, because each instalment has a vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs. In
situation where the stock option expires unexercised, the related balance standing to the credit of the Employee Stock
Options Outstanding Account is transferred within equity.
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2.2.a

2.2.b

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, the accompanying disclosures
including the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the financial statements were prepared. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the year in
which the estimates are revised and in any future year affected.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,
estimates and assumptions, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

* Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using appropriate valuation techniques. The inputs for these valuations are taken from observable sources where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of various inputs including liquidity risk, credit risk, volatility etc. Changes in assumptions/judgments
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. For further details about determination
of fair value refer note 45.

» Impairment of financial assets using the expected credit loss method

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default, expected loss rates and
loss given defaults. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Company's history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. For further details about assumptions used in calculating expected credit
losses and the sensitivity of assumptions refer note 46B.

* Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the Solely for payment of principal and
interest (SPPI) test and the business model test The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how
Company’s of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgment used by the Company in determining the business model including how the performance of the
assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed. The Company monitors financial assets that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason
for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.

s Income taxes

Significant judgments are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining
the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. For further
details refer note 33.

* Provisions and contingencies
Provisions and contingencies are recognized when they become probable and when there will be a future outflow of

circumstances, which are subject to change S ‘ y
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* Employee stock option scheme (ESOP)

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using Black-Scholes Model to determine
the fair value of the liability incurred on the grant date. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions
requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the
grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the
expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

Assumptions and estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimating uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
financial statements are prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

* Retirement and other employee benefits

The cost of the gratuity and long-term employee benefits and the present value of its obligations are determined using
actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the future salary increases, attrition rate, mortality rates
and discount rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, the obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates for India. The attrition rate represents the
Company's expected experience of employee turnover. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables
for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Discount rate is
based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the
liabilities.

Further details about gratuity and long term employee benefits obligations are provided in note 42.

* Effective interest rate

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial (i.e. its amortised cost before any
impairment allowance) or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. This estimation, by nature, requires an element
of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments and other fee income/expense that are
integral parts of the instrument.
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Particulars
3. Cash and cash equivalents
a) Cash on hand

b) Balances with Banks
i) in current accounts

Note ¢

Short term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn

interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Company has taken Bank overdraft facilities, therefore, cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement is not same as cash and cash equivalent given above.

4. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Other Bank balances
a) In fixed deposit accounts
i) Fixed deposit accounts with maturity more than 3 months
i) Fixed deposits pledged for bank overdraft facility
b) In earmarked accounts
Balances held as security against bank guarantees

Less: Impairment allowance on Fixed deposits

Note: Fixed deposits and other balances with banks earns interest at fixed rate or floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

4.A Encumbrances on fixed deposits held by the Company:
Fixed deposits pledged for:

a) Bank guarantee for cash credit lines
i) AU Small Finance Bank

b) Security deposit for term loan WCDL facilities
i) Jana Bank Finance Ltd

c) Security deposit for term loan WCDL facilities
i) Various Banks

As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 April 1,2018
2.11 2.83 2.50
5,622.45 4,701.28 6,267.11
Total 5,624.56 4,704.11 6,269.61
1.00 . .
1,047.50 3,046.75 4,129.33
1,174.39 2,530.03 S
2,222.89 5,576.78 4,129.33
2.59 12.24 6.53
Total 2,220.30 5,564.54 4,122.80
1,047.50 1,009.89 =
. 2,036.86 -
. - 4,129.33
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5.  Derivative financial instruments

The Company issues market linked debentures (MLD) which has a component in the nature of "Embedded derivatives- Market linked derivatives”, Further to hedge it enters into options
which is in the nature of "Index linked derivatives- options". Derivatives are entered for risk management purposes. These include hedges that either meet the hedge accounting
requirements or hedges that are economic hedges, but the Company has elected not to apply hedge accounting requirements,

The table below shows the fair values of derivative finaucial instruments recorded as assets & Liabilities together with their notional amounts.

The notional amounts indicate the value of transactions outstanding at the year end and are not indicative of either the market risk or credit risk .

As at March 31, 2020
Particulars B . ., . Fair vailue
Unit Currency Notional | Fair value asset Unit Currency Notional ability
(i) Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps - - - - - - - -
Subtotal(i) - - 3 B o o i 5
(i) Equity linked derivatives - 2 - - - - . .
Subtotal(ii) - - - - o o 5 -
(ili) Index linked derivatives
Options purchased - - 1,614.90 2,102.69 - - - -
Options sold - - (233.62) (463.89) - - - -
Subtotal(iii) N 3 1,381.28 1,638.80 | ; £ - z
(iv) Embedded derivatives - - - - - - - -
In market linked debentures - - - - - - - 3,401.88
Subtotai(iv) - - - - - - - 3,401.88
Total derivative financial instruments . Total 1,381.28 1,638.80 b = Total 3,401.88
As at March 31,2019
Particulars . . . ; . Fair value
Unit Curreacy Notional | Fair value asset Unit Currency Notional e
liability
(i) Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps - - - - - - - -
Subtotal(i) - - - - - - - -
(ii) Equity linked derivatives S o o o S - - -
Subtotal(ii) - - - - = o 5 -
(iti) Index linked derivatives
Options purchased - - 560.40 705.27 - - - -
Options sold - - (68.39) (0.01) S z - -
Subtotal(ii) - - 492.01 705.26 - - - -
(iv) Embedded derivatives
In market linked debentures - - - - - - - 2,919.64
Subtotal(iv) - - - - - - - 2,919.64
Total derivative financial instruments = - 492.01 705.26 - - - 2,919.64
As at April 1, 2018
Unit Currency Notional | Fair value asset Unit Currency Notional F%lr ‘,“_‘lue
Particulars liability
(i) Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps - - - - o . g -
Subtotal(i) - - - - = = - g
(ii) Equity linked derivatives - - - - - - - -
Subtotal(ii) - - - - B B . B
(iif) Index linked derivatives
Oprtions purchased - - 882.19 1,064.92 - - - -
Options sold - - 340.80 (129.66) - - - -
Subtotal(iii) - - 1,222.99 935.26 - - - -
(iv) Embedded derivatives . . . . . . .
In market linked debentures - - - - - - - 1,862.72
Subtotal(iv) - - - - - - - 1,862.72

Total derivative financial instruments - - - 935.26 - - - 1,862.72
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Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 Mareh 31,2019 April 1,2018
6. Loans
At amortised cost
A. Proudctwise Details
a) Bills discounting 35,947.04 61,720.57 2,449.17
b) On demand loans 5,502.91 7,863.05 4.350.20
¢) Term loans 44,233.02 41,027.31 27,303.66
d) Others
Loan to Staff 2.50 2.76 1.86
Total (A) - Gross 85,685.47 1,10,613.69 34,104.89
Less: Impairment loss allowance 1,296.77 1,325.85 145.00
Total (A) - Net 84,388.70 1,09,287.84 33.959.89
B. Securitywise Details
a) Secured
1) Secured by tangible assets 43,118.59 48,890.36 28,825.41
ii) Secured by intangible assets - - -
b) Unsecured 42,566.88 61,723.33 5,279.48
Total (B) - Gross 85,685.47 1,10,613.69 34,104.89
Less: Impairment loss allowance 1,296.77 1,325.85 145.00
Total (B) - Net 84,388.70 1,09,287.84 33,959.89

C. Regionwise Details

a) Loans in India

- Public sector = - .

- Others 85,685.47 1,10,613.69 34,104.89
b) Loans outside India 5 = -

Total (C) - Gross 85,685.47 1,10,613.69 34,104.89
Less: Impairment loss allowance 1,296.77 1,325.85 145.00
Total (C) - Net 84,388.70 1,09,287.84 33,959.89

6.1 Note:
The Company entered into a memorandum of understanding with Centrum Capital Limited (‘CCL’ or the 'ultimate holding company'), pursuant to
which CCL would indemnify CFSL for loss suffered by the Company, for the borrower clients referred by CCL to the Company. During the
previous year, the Company exercised its right of indemnification under the said MOU with CCL for losses incurred on a loan receivable.
Accordingly, the Company received the loan outstanding amount of Rs, 2,500 lakhs from CCL towards indemnification of such loss.
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Centrum Finaacial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements a3 at and for the year ened March 31, 2020

Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs}

7. Investments
As st March 31,2020 At Fair value (FV)
- Designated at FV
Particulars At Amortised cost Through OCI Throui: sP;r«lit (LA £k Profit or Subtotal Others Total
loss
A) B) © ) D) =(B+C} ® {F) = (A+D+E)
A, Caiegory of Instrument
a} Equity instruments (Quoted} - } 0.25 R 025 - 025
b} Bonds and debentures (Quoted) (Refer Note 51) . R 100.00 . 100,00 - 100.00
©}  Security reeeipis 0 N S ° "
v lsani: -ertible Dob R . N
d} p rily Convertible ) 1,500.00 : 1.500.00 1,500.00
3 i 3 3 5 5
e} Loans in nature of debentures 3,050.63 ) R R 3.050.63
£)  Muwual fund units - ) i i - -
Total (A) - Gross 3,050.63 - 1,600.25 - 1,600.25 - 4,650.88
Less: Allowance for impairment 2.18 - - - - - 3,18
Total (A) - Net 3,042.48 - 1,600.25 - 1,600.25 - 4,642.70
B. a} (i) Investments outside India - - - - - -
ii) Iny in Indi 5 s B 5 .
b) i} Investnient in India 3,050.63 1,600.25 1,600.25 1.650.48
Total (B) - Gross 3,050.63 - 1,600.25 - 1,600.25 - 4,650.88
Less: Allowance for impainment 3.18 - - - B - 3.18
Total (B) - Net 3,042.48 - 1,600.25 - 1,600,25 - 4,642.70
As at March 31,2019 At Fair value (FV)
‘ Desigmated at FV
Particalars At Amortised cost Through OCI Thm"ﬂ :mﬁt or through Profit or Subtotal Others Total
loss
&) . ® © ®) ®) = (B+C) E) (F) = (A+D+E)
A, Category of Instrument
a)  Equity instruments (Quoted) - R 3,408.80 R 3.408.80 - 3.408.80
b) Bouds and debentures (Quoted) - B 432.08 B 482.08 - 1482.08
c) Security receipts - R - B - -
d) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures D ‘ ) )
. . A A
¢} Loans in naturc of debentures 2.812.96 B : B 2812.96
) Mutual fund units - - -
Total (A) - Gross 2,812.96 - 3,890.88 - 3,890.88 - 6,703.84
Less: Allowance for impairment 10.07 - - - - - 10.07
Tutal (A) - Net 2,.802.89 - 3,890.88 - 3,890.88 ~ 6,683.77
B. 2) (i) Investments outside India - - S S 5 5
b} (i) Investment in India 2.812.96 - 3,890.88 - 3,890.88 -
6.703.84
Total (8) - Gross 2,812.96 - 3,890.88 - 3,890.88 - 6,703.84
Less: Allowance for impairment 10.07 - - . - . 10.07
Total (B) - Net 2,802.89 - 3,890.88 - 3,890.88 - 6,693.77
As at April 1, 2018 At Fair value {(FV)
. Designated at FV
. AtA d btotal O1h Total
Particulars t Amortised cost Through OCI meih,:,mﬁt o hrou ¢h Proiit or Subtotal thers ‘otal
loss
@) (B} © ®) D) =(8+C) ® () = (A+DE)
A.  Category of Instrument
a)  Equily instruments (Quoted) - R 4.66 ) 4.66 - 466
b) Bonds and debentures (Quoted)} - B 499.17 R 499.17 - 499.17
¢) Sceurity receipis - R 72538 R 72538 - 725,38
d) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures - B - ) 3 - i
¢) Loans in naturc of debentures 2,533.85 B ; B - - 2.533.85
) Mutual fund units - } - -
Total (A) - Gruss 2,533.85 - 1,229.21 - 1,229.21 - '3,763.06
Less: Allowance for impairment 10.14 - - . - - 10.14
Total (A) - Net 2,523.71 - 1,229.21 - 1,229.21 - 3,752.92
B. a) (i) Invesiments outside India - - - 5 8 5 B
b) (i) Investment in India 2,533.85 . 1,229.21 . 1,229.21 . 3.763.06
Total (B) - Gross 2,533.85 - 1,229.21 - 1,229.21 - 3,763.06
Less: Allowance for impairment 10.14 . - - - - 10.14
Total (B) - Net 2,523.71 - 1,229.21 - 1,229.21 - 3,752.92
More information regarding the valuation meihodologies cun be found in Note 45.B
—
| V-
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31, 2020

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
8. Other financial assets
a) Recelvable from non banking financial companies - 1.918.86 -
b) Security deposits 16.32 7.22 3.81
¢) Loan processing fees receivable - 16.73 76.62
d) Margin with broker 1,023.49 49.92 964.39
e) Other financial assets 33.18 62.53 306.13
Total 1,072.99 2,055.26 1,350.95
9. Current tax assets / liabilities (Net)
9.A Advance income tax 2,035.60 1,136.65 585.57
{Net of Provision for income tax Rs. 1,107 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.1,107 Lakhs)
Total 2,039.60 1,136.65 585.57
9.B Provision for taxation 89.08 89.08 89.08
{(Net of Advance tax Rs. 2,950 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.2,202 Lakhs)
Total 89.08 89,08 89.08
10, Investment Property As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 April 1, 2018%
Building Building Building
A) Gross carrying amount as at beginning of the year 3,510.95 3,510.95 3,510.95
Additions during the year - - -
Disposals and transfers - - -
Gross carrying amount as at end of the year (A) 3,510.95 3,510.95 3,510.95
Accumulated Depreciation as at beginning of the year 56.48 - -
Depreciation during the year 56.64 56.48 -
Disposals and transfers - - -
Accumulated Depreciation as at end of the year (B) 113.12 56.48 -
Net carrying amount (A-B) 3,397.84 3,454.48 3,510.95
*Deemed cost as at April 1, 2018
B) Amounts recognised in Statement of profit or loss for investment properties
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Rental income from Investment Property 2425 86.89
Direct operating expense arising from Investment property that generated 16.81 29.77
rental income during the year
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 7.44 57.12
Depreciation charge for the year 56.64 56.48
Profit from investment properties after depreciation (49.20) 0.64

C. Notes:
i) Contractual obligations

The Company has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property. However, the responsibility for its repairs, maintenance or

enhancements is with the Company.

ii) Fair value - The fair valuation of investment proparty as at March 31, 2020 is Rs.3451.60 Lakhs . (March 31, 2019 Rs. 3454.48 Lakhs)

iii) Pledged details - Investment property is pledged against Bank overdraft facility availed from Union Bank of India.

iv) Estimation of fair value - The fair valuc is based on the valuation report issued by an independent valuer.

v) Leasing arrangements - Investment property is leased fully to tenants. Agreement provides for cancellation by either party or contain clause for escalation and renewal

of agreements. The non-cancellable operating lease agreement is for a period of 3 years.
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31, 2020

(Cwrrency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

11,

E.

Carrying Value of Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as Collateral

Particulars

a) Vehicles pledged against Vehicle Loan
b) Premises pledged against Secured MLDs
Note on Goodwill Impairment Testing
2. Goodwill
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year
Goodwill arising on acquisitions
Balance at the end of the year

b. Goedwill impairment assessment

As at
March 31,2020

86.44

19,18

As at
March 31,2020
1,442.02

1,442.02

As at
March 31, 2019

25.36

19.50

As at
March 31,2019
141.11
1,300.91
1,442.02

As at
April 1,2018

29.60

12.34

As at
April 1,2018
141.11

141.11

The Company tests whether goodwill has suffered any impainment on an annual basis and when the circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) was determined based on the higher of the CGU's (Cash generating unit's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value-in-use, the calculations
of which require the use of assumptions. The calculations of the value in use consider the cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the management covering a five-
year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using estimated growth rate. Fair value is determined by applying book value multiple.
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing and there are no separate reportable segments identified. However, the Company has different types of portfolios and the
portfolio of Supply Chain Finance Business is considered as the cash generating unit for the purpose of allocating goodwill.

This represents the goodwill recognised on the acquisition of Supply Chain Finance Business. The Company believes that the carrying amount of the goodwill is recoverable based on

experts' valuation report.




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31, 2020

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
12, Other non financial assets
a) Prepaid expenses 73.19 43.89 27.80
b) Advance for expenses
Advance to employees 2.51 - -
Advance to vendors 34.04 10.44 -
¢) Balances with statutory authorities 280.84 183.50 1.70
Total 390.58 237.83 29.50
13. Trade Payables
a) Micro and small enterprises (Refer note below) 5.94 51.03 591
b) Due to related parties 98.84 - -
¢) Due to others 121.39 115.66 116.46
Total 226.17 166.69 123.37

Note:

The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

For disclosure pertaining to Micro and Small Enterprises refer note No.39

14. Other Payables

a) Micro and small enterprises (Reler note below) - - -
b) Due to related parties . - .
¢) Due to Others 12.15 : = -

Total 12,15 - -

Note:

The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
For disclosure pertaining to Micro and Small Enterprises refer note No.39

15. Debt securities

15.1
At amortised cost
A. Secured
a) Secured Non Convertible Debentures - privately placed 48,693.35 35,487.63 16,485.63
(V] 48,693.35 35,487.63 16,485.63
B. Unsecured ]
a) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures - privately placed 1,509.14 1,509.14 -
b) Commercial Papers - privately placed 1,873.77 - -
(B) 3,382.91 1,509.14 -
Total (A +B) 52,076.26 36,996.77 16,485.63
15.2
i) Debt securities in India 52,076.26 36,996.77 16,485.63
ii) Debt securities outside India - - -
Total 52,076.26 36,996.77 16,485.63

Note:
i) Terms of Repaymeats of Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD)
The above CCD's are unrated unlisted unsecured debentures carrying 10% coupon rate to be paid annuully over the tenure of § years.




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31, 2020

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

15 Debt securities - (Continued)

15.3 A Terms of repayment of MLD as on March 31, 2020

Particulars Type U?x:‘::i; Mnrc:i:,t 2020 Current Neon-Current Issue Date Date of Maturity
MLD29 Type 1 Unquoted 450.00 450.00 - 01-Dec-16 09-Apr-20
MLD29 Type3 Unquoted 600.00 600.00 : - 01-Dec-16 09-Apr-20
MLD29 Type 4 Ungquoted 300.00 300.00 - 01-Dec-16 13-Apr-20
MLD30 Type2 Unquoted 100.00 100.00 - 02-Dec-16 15-Apr-20
MLD31 Type 3 Unquoted 100.00 100.00 - 08-Dec-16 16-Apr-20
MLD33 Type 3 Unquoted 400.00 400.00 - 20-Dec-16 28-Apr-20
MLD33 Type 4 Unquoted 125.00 125.00 - 20-Dec-16 03-May-20
MLD34 Type 1 Unquoted 450.00 450.00 - 27-Dec-16 05-May-20
MLD34 Type 2 Ungquoted 150,00 150.00 - 27-Dec-16 05-May-20
MLD35 Type 3 Unquoted 150.00 150.00 - 30-Dec-16 08-May-20
MLD35 Type 4 Unquoted 100.00 100.00 - 30-Dec-16 08-May-20
MLD35 Type 5 Unquoted 300.00 300.00 - 30-Dec-16 08-May-20
MLD34 Type 3 Unquoted 300.00 300.00 - 27-Dec-16 10-May-20
MLD35 Type 1 Unquoted 250.00 250,00 - 30-Dec-16 14-May-20
MLD36 Type 1 Ungquoted 100.00 100.00 - 02-Jan-17 14-May-20
MLD36 Type 2 Unquoted 150.00 150.00 - 02-Jan-17 15-Jun-20
MLD 42 - Quoted 2,282.00 2,282.00 - 22-Feb-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 42A - Quoted 563.58 563.58 - 12-Mar-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 42B - Quoted 800.09 800.09 - 19-Mar-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 42C - Quoted 100.90 100.90 - 29-Mar-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 42D - Quoted 399.03 399.03 - 05-Apr-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 42E - Quoted 201.74 201.74 - 16-Apr-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 42F - Quoted 574.15 574.15 - 26-Apr-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 42G - Quoted 203.86 203.86 - 08-May-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 42H - Quoted 459.63 459.63 - 17-May-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 421 - Quoted 175.16 175.16 - .27-May-19 17-Jun-20
MLD37 - Quoted 2,350.00 2,350.00 - 08-Oct-18 06-Nov-20
MLD38 - Quoted 505.00 505.00 - 23-Oct-18 23-Nov-20
MLD 38A - Quoted 458.00 458.00 - 22-Nov-18 23-Nov-20
MLD 38B - Quoted 478.81 478.81 - 19-Dec-18 23-Nov-20
MLD 38C - Quoted 874.09 874.09 - 28-Dec-18 23-Nov-20
MLD 38D - Quoted 201.48 201.48 - 08-Jan-19 23-Nov-20
MLD 38E - Quoted 139.27 139.27 . - 15-Jan-19 23-Nov-20
MLD 38F - © Quoted 233.75 233.75 - 12-Feb-19 23-Nov-20
MLD 44 - Quoted 270.00 270.00 - 14-Jun-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44A - Quoted 482.54 482.54 - 04-Jul-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44C - Quoted 655.98 655.98 - 15-Jul-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44D - Quoted 501.95 501.95 - 23-Jul-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44E - Quoted 465.47 465.47 - 29-Jul-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44F - Quoted 253.46 253.46 - 30-Jul-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44G - Quoted 202.54 202.54 - 01-Aug-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44H - Quoted 470.73 470.73 - 08-Aug-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 441 - Quoted 445.75 445.75 - 20-Aug-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 447 - Quoted 586.27 586.27 - 27-Aug-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44K _ - Quoted 253.51 253.51 - 06-Sep-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44L - Quoted 307.80 307.80 - 09-Sep-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44M - Quoted 409.64 409.64 - 13-Sep-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44N - Quoted 159.39 159.39 - 18-Sep-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 440 - Quoted 199.96 199.96 - 20-Sep-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44P - Quoted 185.00 185.00 - 27-Sep-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44Q - Quoted 962.36 962.36 - 23-Oct-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 44R - Quoted 335.99 335.99 - 31-Oct-19 15-Dec-20
MLD 47 - Quoted 685.00 - 685.00 08-Oct-19 12-May-21
MLD 47A - Quoted 331.29 - 331.29 22-Nov-19 12-May-21
MLD 47B - Quoted 392.22 - 392.22 29-Nov-19 12-May-21
MLD 47C - Quoted 204.06 - 204.06 23-Jan-20 12-May-21
MLD 47D - Quoted 205.06 - 205.06 11-Feb-20 12-May-21
MLD 45 - Quoted 755.00 - 755.00 " 21-Jun-19 28-Oct-21
MLD39 - Quoted 1,955.00 - 1,955.00 02-Nov-18 12-May-22
MLD39%9A - - Quoted 257.01 - 257.01 12-Dec-18 12-May-22
MLD40 . Quoted 1,315.00 - 1,315.00 05-Dec-18 14-Jun-22
MLD 41 - Quoted 1,893.00 - 1,893.00 25-Jan-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41A - Quoted 2,342.68 - 2,342.68 31-Jan-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41B - Quoted 536.93 - . 536.93 06-Feb-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41C - Quoted 1,483.82 - 1,483.82 28-Feb-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41D - Quoted 207.73 - 207.73 15-Mar-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41E - Quoted 1,135.21 - 1,135.21 26-Mar-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41F - Quoted 560.74 - 560.74 12-Apr-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41G - Quoted 257.93 . 25793 30-Apr=19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41H - Quoted 206.44 - 206.44 02-May-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 411 - Quoted 879.27 - 879.27 24-May-19 04-Aug-22

MLD 41J - Quoted 625.08 - 625.08 07-Jun-19 04-Aug-22




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year encd March 31, 2020

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

15  Debt securities - (Continued)

15.3 A Terms of repayment of MLD as on_March 31, 2020 (Continued)

Particulars Type ng:(:oet‘;c/i Mmc;:;:,t 2020 Current Non-Current Issue Date Date of Maturity
MLD 41K - Quoted 265.99 - 265.99 12-Jun-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41L - Quoted 630.35 - 630.35 27-Jun-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41M - Quoted 210.24 - 210.24 12-Jul-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41N . ) Quoted 417.66 - 417.66 25-Jul-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 410 - Quoted 701.38 - 701.38 31-Jul-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41P - Quoted 315.33 - 315.33 02-Aug-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41Q - Quoted 697.87 - 697.87 22-Aug-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41R - Quoted 572.49 - 572.49 29-Aug-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 43 - Quoted 1,594.00 - 1,594.00 24-Apr-19 01-Nov-22
MLD 43A - Quoted 568.00 - 568.00 30-May-19 01-Nov-22
MLD 43B - Quoted . 205.00 - 205.00 26-Jun-19 01-Nov-22
MLD 43C . Quoted 177.27 - 177.27 17-Jul-19 01-Nov-22
MLD 43D - Quoted 275.00 - 275.00 16-Aug-19 01-Nov-22
MLD 418 . Quoted 633.26 - 633.26 12-Sep-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41T - Quoted 93.37 - 93.37 01-Oct-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41U - Quoted 174.60 - 174.60 18-Oct-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41V - Quoted 107.98 - 107.98 25-Oct-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41W - Quoted 343.39 - 343.39 20-Dec-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41X - Quoted 338.01 - 338.01 24-Dec-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 46 - Quoted 597.00 - 597.00 26-Sep-19 28-Apr-23
MLD 46A - Quoted 200.40 - 200.40 30-Oct-19 28-Apr-23
MLD 46B - Quoted 262.96 - 262.96 20-Nov-19 28-Apr-23
MLD 48 - Quoted 370.60 - 370.00 15-Nov-19 24-May-23
MLD 48A - Quoted 269.67 - 269.67 25-Nov-19 24-May-23
MLD 48B - Quoted 401.32 - 401.32 28-Nov-19 24-May-23
Total 48,824.88 22,173.88 26,651.00
Add: Commission amortisation (6,843.42) ’
Add: Interest accrued 6,711.89
Total 48,693.35
Note:

i)  The above mentioned debentures are secured, unlisted and listed, rated and unrated, non-convertible, principal protected, market linked debentures carrying variable interest
rate which is linked to performance of specified indices over the tenure of the debentures. Hence, the interest rate/range cannot be ascertained.

i) The Company had raised Rs. 24,094 Lakh (Previous Year Rs. 20,045 Lakhs) secured, redeemable, non-cumulative, unlisted, unrated, non-convertible, principal protected
Market Linked Debentures bearing a face value of Rs. 100,000 each by way of private placement.
Security Details

iii) Above mentioned Market Linked Debentures are secured against first pari passu charge over present and future receivables with minimum security cover of 100 percent of the
issued amount and identified immovable property.

15.3 A Terms of repayment of MLD as on March 31, 2019

Particulars Type U?::‘;toetdeé Marc:;;’t 2019 Current Non-Current Issue Date Date of Maturity
MLDO1 - Unquoted 1,940.00 1,540.00 - 01-Feb-16 05-Jun-19
MLDO02 - Unquoted 450.00 450.00 - 11-Feb-16 19-Jun-19
MLDO03 - Ungquoted 330.00 330.00 - 22-Feb-16 02-Jul-19
MLD04 - Unquoted 240.00 240.00 - 17-Mar-16 27-Jul-19
MLD06 - Unquoted 335.00 335.00 - - 05-Apr-16 14-Aug-19
MLDO07 - Unquoted 790.00 790.00 - 03-May-16 10-Sep-19
MLDO8 - Unquoted 480.00 480.00 - 20-May-16 27-Sep-19
MLDO09 Type 1 Unquoted 115.00 115.00 - 06-Tun-16 14-Oct-19
MLD09 Type 2 Unquoted 175.00 175.00 - 06-Jun-16 14-Oct-19
MLD10 Type 1 Unquoted 125.00 125.00 - 15-Jun-16 23-Oct-19
MLD10 Type 2 Unquoted 275.00 275.00 - 15-Jun-16 23-Oct-19
MLDI11 Type 1 Unquoted 165.00 165.00 . - 24-Jun-16 04-Nov-19
MLD11 Type 2 Unquoted 860.00 860.00 - 24-Jun-16 04-Nov-19
MLD12 Type 2 Unguoted 330.00 330.00 - 04-Jul-16 11-Nov-19
MLD14 Type 3 Ungquoted 205.00 205.00 - 19-Jul-16 26-Nov-19
MLD15 Type 2 Unquoted 75.00 75.00 - 29-Jul-16 06-Dec-19
MLD17 Type 3 Unquoted 241.00 241.00 - 22-Aug-16 30-Dec-19
MLD18 - Unquoted 100.00 100.00 - 26-Aug-16 03-jan-20
MLD19 Type 3 Ungquoted 130.00 130.00 - 02-Sep-16 10-Jan-20
MLD20 - Unquoted 300.00 300.00 - 16-Sep-16 22-Jan-20
MLD2! Type 3 Unquoted 400.00 400.00 - 28-Sep-16 05-Feb-20
MLD22 Type 1 Unquoted 100.00 100.00 . 01:0¢l=16 08<Febs20
MLD25 Type 3 Unquoted 400.00 400,00 - 26-Oct-16 11-Mar-20
MLD27 Type 1 Unquoted 250.00 250.00 - 10-Nov-16 19-Mar-20
MLD27 Type 2 Unquoted 100.00 100.00 - 10-Nov-16 24-Mar-20
MLD29 Type 1 Unquoted 450.00 - 450.00 01-Dec-16 09-Apr-20
MLD2% Type 3 Unquoted 600.00 - 600.00 01-Dec-16 09-Apr-20
MLD29 Type 4 Unquoted 300.00 - 300.00 01-Dec-16 13-Apr-20
MLD30 Type 2 Unquoted 100.00 - 100.00 02-Dec-16 15-Apr-20
MLD31 Type 3 Unquoted 100.00 - 100.00 08-Dec-16 16-Apr-20

MLD33 Type 3 Unquoted 400.00 - 400.00 20-Dec-16 28-Apr-20



Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31, 2020
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15 Debt securities - (Continued)
15.3 A Terms of repayment of MILD as en March 31, 2019 (Continued)
Quoted / Asat

Particulars Type Unquoted March 31, 2019 Current Non-Current Issue Date Date of Maturity
MLD33 Type 4 Unquoted 125.00 - 125.00 20-Dec-16 03-May-20
MLD34 Type 1 Unquoted 450.00 - 450.00 27-Dec-16 05-May-20
MLD34 Type 2 Unquoted 150.00 o 150.00 27-Dec-16 05-May-20
MLD35 Type 3 Unquoted 150.00 - 150.00 30-Dec-16 08-May-20
MLD35 Type 4 Unquoted 100.00 - 100.00 30-Dec-16 08-May-20
MLD35 Type 5 Unquoted 300.00 - 300.00 30-Dec-16 08-May-20
MLD34 Type 3 Ungquoted 300.00 - 300.00 27-Dec-16 10-May-20
MLD35 Type 1 Unquoted 250.00 - 250.00 30-Dec-16 14-May-20
MLD36 Type 1 Unquoted 100.00 - 100.00 02-Jan-17 14-May-20
MLD36 Type 2 Ungquoted 150.00 - 150.00 02-Jan-17 15-Jun-20
MLD 42 - Quoted 2,282.00 - 2,282.00 22-Feb-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 42A - Quoted 563.58 - 563.58 12-Mar-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 42B - Quoted 800.09 - 800.09 19-Mar-19 17-Jun-20
MLD 42C - Quoted 100.90 - 100.90 29-Mar-19 17-Jun-20
MLD37 - Quoted 2,350.00 - 2,350.00 08-Oct-18 06-Nov-20
MLD38 - Quoted 505.00 - 505.00 23-Oct-18 23-Nov-20
MLD 38A - Quoted 458.00 - 458.00 22-Nov-18 23-Nov-20
MLD 388 - Quoted 478.81 - 478.81 19-Dec-18 23-Nov-20
MLD 38C - Quoted 874.09 - 874.09 28-Dec-18 23-Nov-20
MLD 38D - Quoted 201.48 - 201.48 08-Jan-19 23-Nov-20
MLD 38E - Quoted 139.27 - 139.27 15-Jan-19 23-Nov-20
MLD 38F - Quoted 233.75 - 233.75 12-Feb-19 23-Nov-20
MLD39 - Quoted 1,955.00 - 1,955.00 02-Nov-18 12-May-22
MLD3%A - Quoted 257.01 - 257.01 12-Dec-18 12-May-22
MLD40 - Quoted 1,315.00 - 1,315.00 05-Dec-18 14-Jun-22
MLD 41 - Quoted 1,893.00 - 1,893.00 25-Jan-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41A - Quoted 2,342.68 - 2,342.68 31-Jan-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41B - Quoted 536.93 - 536.93 06-Feb-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41C - Quoted 1,483.82 - 1,483.82 28-Feb-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41D - Quoted 207.73 - 207.73 15-Mar-19 04-Aug-22
MLD 41E - Quoted 1,135.21 - 1,135.21 26-Mar-19 04-Aug-22
Total 33,049.34 8,911.00 24,138.34
Add: Commission amortisation (2,722.88)

Add: Interest accrued 5,161.18
Total Net 35,487.63

Note:
i) The above mentioned debentures are secured, unlisted and listed, rated and unrated, non-convertible, principal protected, miarket linked debentures carrying variable interest
rate which is linked to performance of specified indices over the tenure of the debentures, Hence, the interest rate/range cannot be ascertained.

Security Details :
ii) Above mentioned Market Linked Debentures are secured against first pari passu charge over present and future receivables with minimum security cover of 100 percent of the
issued amount and identified immovable property.

15.3 A Terms of repayment of MLD as on April 1, 2018

Particulars Type U?:;z?:e; Apri? :,azt 018 Current Non-Current Issue Date Date of Maturity
CFSL/MLD/31 Type 1 Unquoted 150.00 150.00 - 08-Dec-16 03-Apr-18
CFSL/MLD/34 Type 5 Ungquoted 150.00 150.00 - 27-Dec-16 22-Apr-18
CFSL/MLD/34 Type 6 Unquoted 200.00 200.00 - 27-Dec-16 22-Apr-18
CFSL/MLD/35 Type 2 Unquoted 150.00 150.00 - 30-Dec-16 26-Apr-18
CFSL/MLD/35 Type 6 Unquoted 300.00 300.00 - 30-Dec-16 26-Apr-18
CFSL/MLD/16 Type 1 Ungquoted 275.00 275.00 . - 03-Aug-16 12-Sep-18
CFSL/MLD/19 Type 4 Unquoted 50.00 50.00 - 02-Sep-16 12-Oct-18
CFSL/MLD/22 Type 3 Unquoted 250.00 250.00 - 01-Oct-16 20-Nov-18
CFSL/MLD/24 Type 1 Unquoted 100.00 100.00 - 20-Oct-16 11-Dec-18
CFSL/MLD/31 Type 2 Ungquoted 150.00 150.00 - 08-Dec-16 11-Dec-18
CFSL/MLD/1 - Ungquoted 1,940.00 - 1,940.00 01-Feb-16 05-Jun-19
CFSL/MLD/2 - Unquoted " 450.00 - 450.00 11-Feb-16 19-Jun-19
CFSL/MLD/3 - Ungquoted 330.00 - 330.00 22-Feb-16 02-Jul-19
CFSL/MLD/4 - Unquoted 240.00 - 240.00 17-Mar-16 27-Jul-19
CFSL/MLD/6 - Unquoted 335.00 - 335.00 05-Apr-16 14-Aug-19
CFSL/MLD/7 - Unquoted 790.00 - 790.00 03-May-16 10-Sep-19
CFSL/MLD/8 - Unquoted 480.00 - 480.00 20-May-16 27-Sep-19
CFSL/MLD/9 Type 1 Unquoted 115.00 - 115.00 06-Jun-16 14-Oct-19
CFSL/MLD/9 Type 2 Ungquoted - 175.00 - ,175.00 06-Jun-16 14-Oct-19
CFSL/MLD/10 Type 1 Unquoted 125.00 - 125.00 15-jun-16 23-Oct-19
CFSL/MLD/10 Type 2 Unquoted 275.00 - 275.00 15-Jun-16 23-Qct-19
CFSL/MLD/11 Type 1 Unquoted 165.00 . 165.00 2d=Jun-16 04-Nov-19 -
CFSL/MLD/11 Type 2 Unquoted 860.00 - 860.00 24-Jun-16 04-Nov-19
CFSL/MLD/12 Type 2 Ungquoted 330.00 - 330.00 04-Jul-16 11-Nov-19
CFSL/MLD/14 Type 3 Unquoted 205.00 - 205.00 19-Jul-16 26-Nov-19
CFSL/MLD/15 Type 2 Unquoted 75.00 - 75.00 29-Jul-16 06-Dec-19
CFSL/MLD/17 Type 3 Unquoted 241.00 - 241.00 22-Aug-16 30-Dec-19
CFSL/MLD/18 - Unquoted 100.00 - 100.00 26-Aug-16 03-Jan-20

CFSL/MLD/19 Type 3 Unquoted 130.00 - 130.00 02-Sep-16 10-Jan-20
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18 Debt securities - (Continued)
15.3 A Terms of repayment of MLD as on April 1, 2018

Quoted / Asat

Particulars Type Unquoted April 1, 2018 Current Non-Current Issue Date Date of Maturity
CFSL/MLD/20 - Unquoted 300.00 - 300.00 16-Sep-16 22-Jan-20
CFSL/MLD/21 Type 3 Unquoted 400.00 - 400.00 28-Sep-16 05-Feb-20
CFSL/MLD/22 Type 1 Ungquoted 100.00 - 100.00 01-Oct-16 08-Feb-20
CFSL/MLD/25 Type 3 Unquoted 400,00 - 400.00 26-Oct-16 11-Mar-20
CFSL/MLD/27 Type 1 Unquoted 250.00 - 250.00 10-Nov-16 19-Mar-20
CFSL/MLD/27 Type 2 Unquoted 100.00 - 100.00 10-Nov-16 24-Mar-20
CFSL/MLD/29 Type 1 Unquoted 450.00 - 450.00 01-Dec-16 09-Apr-20
CFSL/MLD/29 Type 3 Unquoted 600.00 - 600.00 01-Dec-16 09-Apr-20
CFSL/MLD/29 Type 4 Unquoted 300.00 - 300.00 01-Dec-16 13-Apr-20
CFSL/MLD/30 Type 2 Unquoted 100.00 - 100.00 02-Dec-16 15-Apr-20
CFSL/MLD/31 Type 3 Unquoted 100.00 - 100.00 08-Dec-16 16-Apr-20
CFSL/MLD/33 Type 3 Ungquoted 400.00 - 400.00 20-Dec-16 28-Apr-20
CFSL/MLD/33 Type 4 Unquoted 125.00 - 125.00 20-Dec-16 03-May-20
CFSL/MLD/34 Type 1 Unquoted 450.00 - 450.00 27-Dec-16 05-May-20
CFSL/MLD/34 Type 2 Unquoted 150.00 - 150.00 27-Dec-16 05-May-20
CFSL/MLD/35 Type 3 Unquoted 150.00 - . 150.00 30-Dec-16 08-May-20
CFSL/MLD/35 Type 4 Ungquoted 100.00 - 100.00 30-Dec-16 08-May-20
CFSL/MLD/35 Type § Ungquoted 300.00 - 300.00 30-Dec-16 08-May-20
CFSL/MLD/34 Type 3 Unquoted 300.00 - 300.00 27-Dec-16 10-May-20
CFSL/MLD/35 Type 1 Unquoted 250.00 - 250.00 30-Dec-16 14-May-20
CFSL/MLD/36 Type 1 Unquoted 100.00 - 100.00 02-Jan-17 14-May-20
CFSL/MLD/36 Type 2 Ungquoted 150.00 - 150.00 02-Jan-17 15-Jun-20
Total 14,711.00 1,775.00 12,936.00
Add: Commission amortisation (1,210.10)

Add: Interest accrued 2,984.73
Total 16,485.63
Note:

i)  The above mentioned debentures are secured, unlisted and listed, rated and unrated, non-convertible, principal protected, market linked debentures carrying variable interest
rate which is linked to performance of specified indices over the tenure of the debentures. Hence, the interest rate/range cannot be ascertained.

Security Details

ii} Above mentioned Market Linked Debentures are secured against first pari passu charge over present and future receivables with minimum security cover of 100 percent of the
issued amount and identified immovable property.

\
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{Curreney : Indian Rupees in lakhs)
15.  Debt securities - (Continued)

15.4 Commercial Paper Issued

. Repayment As at As at As at
rticul Rate of Interest 3 y
p - e Details March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
a) Commercial Paper Issued 8.50% 12 Months 2,000.00 - -
2,000.00 -
Less: Unamortised Discount (126.23) - -
1,873.77 - -
16. Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
As at As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019 April 1, 2018
A.  Borrowings At amortised cost
X a) Term Loans (Secured)
i) from banks 6,250.52 16,216.15 14,198.29
i) from others 11,247.33 45,980.09 1,303.4]
b) Repayable on demand (Secured)
1) Bank Overdraft 2,037.31 1.87 0.71
ii) Others - 1,580.00 2,249.36
Total 19,535.16 63,778.11 17,751.77
Of the Above
i s i) Borrowings in India 19,535.16 63,778.11 17,751,777
ii) Borrowings outside India - - -
Total 19,535.16 63,778.11 17,751.77
16.1 Details of security and terms of repayment
i) Loans from banks and others are secured against the remaining receivables of the Company and Moveable Assats of the Company
ii) Loans from certain financial institutions are seeured against specific receivables of the Company.
16.2 Term loans from banks -Secured
Terms of Repayment - As at March 31, 2020
Tenure ( From the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount
Rs. In Lakhs
36-48 months 10.50% Quarterly Instalments 346.40
24-36 months 10.50% Quarterly Instalments 173.20
12-24 months 10.05%to 10.50%  Quarterly Instalments 1,119.97
upto 12 months 9.25%t0 11.65%  Monthly & Quarterly Instalments 4,721.07
6,360.64
Add: Effective Interest rate amortisation (110.12)
6,250.52
Terms of Repayment - As at March 31, 2019
Tenure ( From the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount
Rs. In Lakhs
12-24 months 9% to 11.99% Monthly & Quarterly Instaliments 2,820.53
upto 12 months 9% to 11.99% Bullet 13.485.73
16,306.26
Add: Effective Interest rate amortisation (90.11)

Terms of Repayment - As at April 1,2018

16,216.15

Tenure ( From the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount
Rs. In Lakhs
60-110 months 9% to 9.99% Monthly Instalments 1,263.75
48-60 months 9% 10 9.99% Monthly Instalments 161.70
36-48 months 9% 10 9.99% Monthly Instalments 119.60
24-36 months 9% 10 10.99% Monthly Instalments 83.88
12-24 months 9% 10 10.99% Monthly & Quarterly Instalments 4,251.55
upto 12 months 9% to 10.99% Bullet 8,421.22
14,301.70
Add: Effective Interest rate amortisation (103.41)

16.3 Term loans from Others -Sccured
Terms of Repayment ~ As at March 31, 2020

14,198.29

Tenure ( From the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount
Rs. In Lakhs
24-36 months 9.54% Bullet & Monthly Instalments 41,73
12.24 months 9.54% Monthly Instaliments 8.36
upto 12 months 9.54% 10 10,75%  Monthly Instalments 11,214.22
11,264.31
Add: Effective Interest raic amortisation (16.98)
11!247.33
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16. Borrowings (Other than Debt Securitics) - (Continued)
16,3 Term loans from Others -Secured (Continued)
Terms of Repayment - As at March 31,2019

. Amount
the date of the Balance Shed Repa; t Details
Tenure ( From the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest epayment Detail K. Tn Lakhs
12-24 months 10%to 11.99% Bullet, Monthly & Quarterly Instalments 12,500.00
upte 12 months 9% 10 13.99% Bullet, Monthly & Quarterly Instalments 33,763.71
46,263.71
Add: Effective Interest rate amortisation (283.62)

Terms of Repayment - As at April 1, 2018

45,980.09

Tenure ( From the date of the Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Emount
Rs. in Lakhs
12-24 months 9% t0 10.99% Bullet, Monthly & Quarterly Instalments 563.71
upto 12 months 9% to 10.99% Bullet, Monthly & Quarterly Instal 752.26
1,315.97
Add: Effective Interest rate amortisation (12,56}
ﬂ!303.41
16.4 Loans Repayable on Demand -Secured
Terms of Repayment
Particulars Rate of Interest Rep ayifient AskL Asat {\s B
Details March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 April 1,2018
Loans Repayable on Demand 10%10 11.25% on Demand - 1,580.00 2,249.36
Total E 1,580.00 2,249.36
16.4.1 Details of security
i) Loans Repayable on Demand are secured against shares
16.5 Bank overdraft
Terms of Repayment
Particulars Rate of Interest Rapay ’flem Asat Agat f“ 0
Detaiis March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 April 1,2018
Bank draft
s 8.50%t0 10.5% 12 months 024 2,037.31 1.87 071
months
Total 2,037.31 1.87 0.71
16.5.1 Details of security
i) Bank Overdraft are secured against Fixed Deposits and Investment property
17.  Deposits - At amortised cost As at Asat As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019 April 1,2018
Intercorporate Deposits (uisecured) 256.72 521.04 2,041.65
256.72 521.04 2,041.65
18. Repayment Terms of Deposits
. Repayment Asat As at As at
Particul Rate of In L
aricwars Ao Details March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April1, 2018
a) Intercorporate Deposits (unsecured) 9% to0 11.99% 12 months 256.72 521.04 2,041.65
Total 256,72 521.04 2,041.65
19,  Other financial liabilities
a) Security deposits — 9.46 11.46 9.46
b) Payable on the accounts of assignments - 246.54 - -
¢) Other Financial Liabilities 886.61 1,589.22 30.44
Total . 1,142.60 1,600.69 39.90
20, Provisions '
a) Provision for Employee Benefits
i) Gratuity 38.94 69.94 10.33
ii) Compensated absences 15.62 25.19 14.24
iii} Others 3036 19.09 -
b) Provision for undrawn conunitmieits 4.50 0.93 1.51
Total 89.42 115,15 26.08
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20.1

21.

Lean Commitments

Credit quality of exposure
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company’s internal credit rating system and year-

end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Company’s internal grading system are
explained in Note 46.B.2

As at March 31, 2020
Stage 1 Collective

As at March 31, 2019
Stage 1 Collective

As at April 01, 2018
Stage 1 Collective

Particulars

Internal rating grade

Performing
High grade 1,834.85 210.78 33240
Total 1,834.85 210.78 332.40

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to other undrawn loan commitments is, as
follows:

Gross exposure reconciliation

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Stage 1 Stage 1
Opening balance of outstanding exposure 210.78 332.40
New exposures 1,834.85 198.38
Exposures derecognised or matured/repaid (excluding write (210.78) (320.00)
offs)
Closing balance of outstanding exposure 1,834.85 210.78
Reconciliation of ECL balance in relation to other undrawn loan commitments is given below:
Year ended Year ended
S March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Brielans General approach General approach
Stage 1 Stage 1
ECL allowance - opening balance 0.93 1.51
New exposures 450 0.88
Exposures derecognised or matured (excluding write offs) (0.93) (1.46)
ECL allowance - closing balance 4.50 0.93
Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019 April 1, 2018
a) Advances from customers 58.86 18.20 8.18
b) Statutory dues payable 213.80 247.81 143.57
c) Undisbursed processing fees 6.75 45.87 22.50
d) Unearned discounting charges 397.25 727.42 59.11
Total 676.66 1,039.30 233.36
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22, Equity Share capital

a) Share capital authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up

As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,2019 As at April 1,2018
Particulars
No. of shares Amouat No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Authorised:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/each 15,00,00,000 15,000.00 15,00,00,000 15,000.00 15.00,00,000 15,000.00
15,00,00,000 15,000.00 15,00,00,000 15,000,00 15,00!00!000 15,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & paid up:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/each 9,89,56,900 9,895.69 9,89,56,900 9,895.69 5,68,61,900 5,686.19
9,89,56,900 9,895.69 9189,56@00 9.895.69 5,68,61,900 5,686.19
b) Reconciliations of the number of equity shares and share capital :
As at March 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1,2018
Particulars
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amouat
Issued, Subscribed & paid ap:
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 9,89,56,500 9,895.69 5,68,61,900 5686.19 5,68.61.900 5,686.19
Add: Shares issued during the year - - 4,20,95,000 4,209.50 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 9,89,56,900 9,895.69 ) 9,89,56,900 9,895.69 5,68,61,900 5,686.19

¢) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. The Company has not declared/proposed any dividend in the current year and previous year.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held

by the shareholders.

As per record of the Company, including its register of shareholder/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above share holding represents both legal and

beneficial ownerships of shares,

d) Shareholder holding more than 5% of equity shares as at the end of the year:

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Name of Shareholders
No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Centrum Capital Limited, - 0.00% 9,89,56,900 100.00% 5,68,61,900 100.00%
Holding Company*
Centrum Retail Services Limited, 9,89,56,900 100.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Holding Company*

¢) Shares reserved for issue under options
Refer note 43 for shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option scheme (ESOP) of the Company.

f)  Aggregate number of equity shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
Nil

g) No dividend is paid during the year or recommended by the Board Of Directors for the financial year 2019-20. : -
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Particulars Asat As at As 2t
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 April 1, 2018
23, Other Equity

a) Securities premium 18,639.96 18,639.96 10.358.60
b) Statutory reserve 466.61 302.09 292.57

¢} Employes stock options 299.80 144,57 -
d) Retained earnings (588.87) {676.33) 217.6C

e} Impairment reserve 570.64 . B
f) Capital contribution 648.56 619.92 14.76

g) Other comprehensive income (5.40) 5.37 -
Total 20,031.30 19,035.58 10,883.53

A. Nature and purpose of reserves

2. Securities premium reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Statutory reserve
Reserve created under 45-IC(1) in The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss
account and before any dividend is deelared.

¢ Employee stock options
The share options outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee stock option plan.

d. Retained Earnings
Retained eamnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed eamings after taxes.

e. Impairment reserve
Impairment reserve comprises of the excess provision as per Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning norms (IRACP norms) as compared to the
provision as per the ECL model adopted by the Company.

f. Capital contribution
Capital contribution represents the indirect equity contribution by the Parent.

B. Movement in Other equity

a) Securities premium

Opening balance 18,639.96 10,358.60 10,358.60
Add : Premium Received on issue of sccurities - 8,281.36 -
Closing Balance (a) 18,639.96 18,639.96 10,358.60
b) Statutory reserve
Opening balance 302.09 292.57 292.57
Add : Transfer from retained earnings 164.52 9.52 -
Closing Balance (b} 466.61 302.09 292.57
¢) Employee stock options
Opening balance 144.57 - -
Add : Additions during the year 155.23 144.57 -
Closing Balauce (©) 299.80 144.57 -
d) Retained Earnings
Opening balance (670.96) 217.60 217.60
Add: Profit for the year 822.62 (884.41) -
Add: Other comprehensive income (10.77) 5.37 -
Amount available for appropriation 140.89 (661.44) 217.60
Appropriations:
Transfer to impairment reserve 570.64 - -
Transfer to statutory reserve 164.52 R -
Closing Balance (d) (594.27) (670.96) 217.60
e) Impairment reserve
Opening balance - - -
Add : Transfer from retained carnings 570.64 - -
Closing Balance 570.64 - -
f) Capital contribution*
Opening balance 619.92 14.76 14.76
Add : Addition during the year 28.64 605.16 -
Closing Balance (e) 648.56 619,92 14,76
(a+b+crd+e) 20,031.30 19,035.58 10,883.53

interest subvention to the Company for interest on Market Linked Debentures amounting to Rs.588.68 Lakhs in FY 2018-19 same was routed through Prof
Statement, however as per Ind AS it is considered as part of Capital Contribution . e,
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25. Fee and commission income

Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
a) Processing fees - 239.56 42.51
b) LC commission income - 3.69

¢) Referral fee income 36.00 -

d) Other fees 2432 -
Total 299.88 46.20

Revenue from contract with Customers
Set out below is the revenue from contracts with customers & reconciliation to Statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Type of Services
i) Fees and commission income 299.88 46.20
Total Revenue from contract with Customers 299.88 46.20
Geographical Markets
i) India 299.88 46.20
ii) Outside India - -
Total Revenue from contract with Customers 299.88 46.20
Timing of revenue recognition
1) Services transferred at a point in time 299.88 46.20
ii) Services transferred over time - -
Total Revenue from contract with Customers 299.88 46.20
Contract Balance
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
1) Trade Receivables - 16.73
i) Contract assets - -

The Company does not have any contract assets or liability, hence disclosures related to it has not been presented.
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26.

27.

28.

Particulars

Net gain on fair value change
A, On trading portfolio

B. Onnon - trading portfolio

a) Realised
b) Unsealised

Other operating revenue

a) Placement income

b) Premium on subscription of bonds
c) Profit/ (Loss)on - DA

d) Amounts written back

e) Other operating revenue*

* includes documentation fees, utilisation fees
Other income
a) Interest subsidy

¢) Lease liability written back
b) Other income

Total

Total

Total

For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
- 375.13
90.16 192.49
90.16 567.62
452.57 588.57
(362.41) {20.95)
90.16 567.62
- 31.50
8.07 -
(1.91) -
173.20 -
9.75 10.03
189.11 41.53
86.11 -
22.73 -
31.68 27.07
140.52 27.07
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29. Finance costs

For the year ended March 31, 2020 For the year ended March 31, 2019

Financial Liabilities measured Total Financial Liabilities measured Total
Particulars
at Fair Value 5 at Fair Value .
through profit or loss aiiAmoctisod Coat through profit or loss at@mortued Cout
a) Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities) . 4.331.16 4,331.16 - 3,540.74 3,540.74
b) Interest on debt instruments - 3,803.62 3,803.62 - 2,656,67 2,656.67
¢) Interest on inter corporate deposits - 88.20 88.20 - 470,92 47092
d} Interest - others - 132.96 132.96 - 166.22 166,22
2)  Other finance charges - 418.82 418.82 - - -
Total - 8,774.76 8,774.76 - 6,834,55 6,834.55
30, Impairment on financial instraments (refer note 53)
A, Year ended March 31, 2020 Year ended March 31, 2019
. Financial Instruments measured Total Financial Instruments measured Total
Particulars
BULAIN v?)]g[ through at amortised cost at fair v(n)lécx through at amoxtised gost
i) Loans 5 (29.07) (29.07) - 1,180.86 1,180.86
ii) Investments - (1.88) (1.88) - (0.07) (0.07)
iii) Fixed deposits - (9.66) (9.66) 572 572
Others
) Undrawn commitments - 3.56 3.56 - (0.58) (0.58)
v) Write off - 28.29 28.29 - 18.86 18.86
Total 5 (8.76) (8.76) e 1,204.79 1,204.79
B. The table below shows the ECL chiarges on financial instruments for the year recorded in the profit and loss based on evaluation stage:
Year ended March 31, 2020
General approach
Particulars 3 Total
Stage 1 collective  Stage 2 collective Stage' POCI
collective
i} Loans and advances to customers (268.72) 15.80 223.85 - (29.07)
ii) Debt instruments measured at amoriised cost (1.88) - - - (1.88)
iif) Fixed deposits (9.66) - - - (9.66)
iv) Undrawn commitments 3.56 - - - 3.56
v) Others - - - - -
Total impairment loss (276.70) 15,80 223.85 - (37.05)
Year ended March 31, 2019
General approach
Particulars Total
Stage 1 collective  Stage 2 collective Stage' P POCI
collective
i)  Loans and advances to customers 309.23 (3.95) 877.58 1,180.86
i) Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 0.07) - - - 0.07)
iii) Fixed deposits 5.72 - - - 5.72
iv)  Undrawn commitments (0.58) - - - (0.58)
v) Others - - - - -
Total impairment loss 314.30 (5.95) 877.58 - 1,185.93
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
31. Employee Benefits Expenses

a) Salaries, allowances and bonus 2,759.99 1,866.71
b) Contribution to provident fund & other funds 114.83 78.46
¢} Contribution to gratuity fund 30.23 14.28
d) Share Based payments to employees 181.26 144.57
¢) Staff welfare expenses 26.36 13.90
Total 3,112.67 2,117.91

During the year, the Company has paid Rs. 344.61 Lakhs as managerial remuneration (including stock options) to its Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer. The said amount exceeded the limits prescribed under the provisions of the Sections 197 read with Schedule V to
the Companies Act, 2013. However, the Company has obtained sharcholders’ approval on October 1, 2019, by passing a special resolution in

the Extra Ordinary General Meeting for such excess remuneration.

32, Others expenses

a} Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer note 32.1 below). 19.78 24,16
b} Bad debis written off during the year (net of recoveries) - -
c) Business promotion expenscs 0.47 12.22
d) Communication cost 8.46 5.96
e) Director's sitting fees 16.94 12.20
f) Energy cost 22.46 17.49
g) Expenditure towards Corporate social Responsibility (refer note 38) 44.17 -
h) Fees and subscription 12.98 19.43
i) Insurance charges 4.14 2.81
j)  Legal and professional fecs 1,045.47 464.11
k) Loss on sale of fixed asscts (net) 0.93 -
1)  Office expenses 30.27 30.00
m) Printing and stationery 6.09 5.18
n) Rates, duties and taxes 2548 68.53
0) Rent 67.79 78.32
p) Repairs and maintenance 27.55 30.97
q) Service charges 3.02 1.16
r)  Software charges 108.45 113.32
sy Travelling expenses 48.60 50.43
t)  Miscellaneous expenses 185.35 20.45
Total 1,678.41 956.74
32.1 Auditors' fees and expenses
As Auditor
a) Audit fee 19.78 23.75
b) for reimbursement - 0.41
Total 19.78 24,16
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33. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”
33.1  Major components of tax expense/(income): Year Ended March 31,
Particelars 2020 2019

L. Profit or Loss section
(i)  Current income tax:

Current income tax expense ' - 109.48
Tax expense in respect of earlier years 8,99 -
(i)  Deferred tax:

Tax expense on origination and reversal of temporary differences 386.65 (268.74)

Income tax expense reported in Profit or Loss (i + if) 395.64 {159.26)

I, Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) section:
(i) Income tax expense / (gain) relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 2an 2.07)

(1) Income tax expense / (gain) relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -

Income tax expense reported in the OCI section (i + ii) (2.17) (2.07)

33.2  Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at Indian corporate tax rate.
During the year, the Company has excrcised the option permitted under section 115SBAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws
(Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company had recognised and remeasured Provision for Income Tax and Deferred Tax based on the rate
prescribed in the said section. Accordingly, total benefit derived by the Company on adoption of new tax rate is Rs. Nil in current tax and reversal of Rs. 57.23
lakhs in deferred tax asset in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2020.

A reconciliation of income tax provision to the amount computed by applying statutory income tax rate to the income before taxes is summarised below.

Year Ended March 31,

Particulars 2020 2019
(a) Profit before tax 1,218.26 (1,043.67)
(b) Corporate tax rate as per Income tax Act, 1961 ’ 25.168% 27.820%
(c) Tax on Accounting profit (c) = (a) * (b) 306.61 (290.35)
(d) Tax impact due to

(i) Tax expense of earlier years 8.99 -

(if) Tax provision as per income tax profits - 109.48

(i11) Disallowances on account of permanent differance 7.49 21.61

{(iv) (Benefit)/ Expense due to change in tax rates on the opening timing differences 57.23 -

(v) Other items 15.32 -

Total effect of tax adjustments [(i) to (iv)] 89.03 131.09
(¢) Tax expense recognised during the year (¢)=(c)+(d) 395.64 (159.26)
() Effective tax rate (fy=(e)/(a) 32.48% 15.26%
4 :- -4 7
/ f%@
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333

Movement in Deferred Taxes

33.3.A Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended March 31, 2020

33.4

D
if)
il
iv)
v)
vi)
Vi)
viii)
ix)
X)

xi)

)

Tax losses

Particulars As at March 31, Recognised in Recognised in As at March 31,
2019 profit or loss (o]0 2020
Deferred tax asset/ (liabilities)
1)  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (64.06) (75.20) - {143.26)
Lease liabilities 0.56 {0.31) - 0.25
EIR impagct of financial assets 9.60 45.74 - 55.34
EIR impact of financial liabilities (151.02) (88.64) - (239.66)
Unrealised gain on derivatives (70.66) 5.84 - {64.82)
Goodwill 36.96 (3.52) - 33.44
Impairment loss on investments 11.69 93.46 - 105.15
Expected Credit loss on loans and other assets 344.02 (13.77) 330.25
Provision for employee benefits 26.47 (14.90) 2.17 13.74
Disallowance under Section w's 40a(ia) 456.79 (331.30) - 12_5.49
Others 0.0t 0.01 - 0.02
Total 600.36 (386.59) 2.17 215.94
33.3.B Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended March 31, 2019
Particulars As atApril 1, Recognised in Recognised in As at March 31,
2018 profit or loss OCI 2019
Deferred tax assei/ (liabilities)
i)  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 3.27 (67.33) - (64.06)
Lease liabilities 0.16 0.40 - 0.56
EIR impact of financial asscts 92.09 (82.49) - 9.60
EIR impact of financial liabilities 3.47 (154.49) - (151.02)
Unrealised gain on derivatives (12.96) (57.70) - (70.66)
Goodwill - 36.96 - 36.96
Impairment loss on investments 9.57 2.12 - 11.69
Expected Credit loss on loans and other assets 45,39 298.63 - 344.02
Provision for employee benefits 6.84 21.70 2.07) 26.47
Disallowance under Section u/s 40aia 185.86 270.93 - 456.75
Others 0.01 - - 0.01
Total 333.71 268.73 (2.07) 600.36
33.3.C Amounts recognised in respect of current tax / deferred tax directly in equity:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Amounts recognised in respect of current tax / deferred tax directly in equity - -
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 613.78 188.56
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34. Lease liabilities

A) The following is the movement in Iease liabilities:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balance as at beginning 47.25 10.81
Additions - 45.72
Finance cost acerued during the period 1391 2.80
Deletions 19.91 -
Payment of lease liabilities 30.24 12.08
Balance as at end 11.01 47.25

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis;

As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
Less than one year 9.88 17.38 5.10
One to five years 1.81 32.43 7.1%
More than five years - 12.02 -
Total 11.69 61.33 12.23

The amounts considered above are actual cash outflows. The lease liability in the balance sheet is the present value of these amounts as on the
reporting date.

As at As at
Particulars ‘ March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Depreciation on Right of use assets 35.74 10.54
Interest expense on lease liability 13.91 2.80
Total cash outflow for leases (rental payments) 30.24 12.08
Additions to Right of use assets - 46.09
Carrying value Right of use assets 10.02 45.76

The Company has taken various office premises under lease. Certain agreements provide for cancellation by either party or certain agreements
contains clause for escalation and renewal of agreements. The non-cancellable operating lease agresments are ranging for a period 12 to 36
months. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements.

The weighted average incremental discounting rate of 10% has been applied to lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet as at the
reporting date .

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the assets are sufficient to meet the obligations
related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

B) This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessor.
The Company has given office premises under lease. The income from lease recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are Rs. 24.34
Lakhs (March 31, 2019: Rs. 86.89 Lakhs). Agreements provide for cancellation by either party or contain clause for escalation and renewal of
agreements. The non-cancellable vperating lease agreement is for a period of 36 months, :

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Less than one year 2431 26.67
One to five years 97.25 179.11
More than five years 3042 31.50
Total 151.98 237.28
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35. Earning per Share
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the
dilutive potential ordinary shares (ESOP) into ordinary shares.

Particulars For the year ended 31 March,
2020 2019
a) Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for Basic EPS 822.62 (884.41)
b) Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for Diluted EPS 822.62 {884.41)
¢) Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding during the year for Basic EPS 9,89,56,900 7,65,92,805
d) Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding during the year for diluted EPS 10,07,62,037 7.82,58,737
e} Nominal value of equity shares (Rs. per share) 10.00 10.06
f) Basic earnings per share (EPS) (Rs. per share) _ 0.83 (1.15)
g) Diluted earnings per share (EPS) (Rs. per share) 0.82 (1.15)

Note: i) For the year ended March 31, 2019, the impact of potential equity shares outstanding as at the year end has not been considered for the
purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, since the same is anti-dilutive in nature.
ii) Compulsory convertible debentures are not considered in EPS calculation as number of equity shares that will be issued on conversion
are not known at present.

36. Commitments and contingencies

Particulars As at 31 March, As at April 1,
2020 2019 2018
Coatingent liabilities ‘
i)  Corporate guarantee - - 500.00
ii) Income tax under dispute 325.51 325.51 18.63

Capital commitments
i)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital - - -
account and not provided for

ity Commitments related to loans sanctioned but undrawn 1,834.85 210.78 332.40

Future cash outflows in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of judgements /decisions pending with various forums/authorities.
It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash flows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the
respective proceedings. The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities. The Company is of
the opinion that above demands are not sustainable and expects to succeed in its appeals. The management believes that the ultimate
outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

37, The Compuny did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision is required for the foreseeable
losses.




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31, 2020

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

38, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) For the year ended 31 March,
As per the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 2020 2019%
A)  Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was 9.12 35.05

B)  Amount spent during the year on
I Construction/acquisition of any assets
i) In Cash - -
if) Yet to be paid in cash

Total (I) - -
1T On purpose other than (i) above
i) In Cash 44.17 -
ii) Yet to be paid in cash** - 35.05
Total (IT) 44.17 35.05
Total (I +1I) 44.17 35.05

* The Company has formed CSR committee as per the requirements of the Act.
**For the year FY 2016 to FY 2019 the Company was in the process of identifying activities to be undertaken as specified in Schedule
VII of the Act. Accordingly provision made towards CSR for following Financial years :

FY 2016-17 6.78
FY 2017-18 13.49
FY 2018-19 14,78

35.05

39. Dues to Micro, Small Enterprises

40.

Disclosure pertaining to Micro and Small Enterprises as at March 31, 2020 is as under.

The details of amounts outstanding together with interest paid /payable to Micro and Small enterprises based on information available with
the Company is as under:

As at 31 March, As at April 1,
2020 2019 2018 -

i)  Amounts outstanding but not due as at March 31/April 1, 5.94 51.03 6.91
il)  Amounts due but unpaid as at March 31/April 1, - - -
iiiy Amounts paid after appointed date during the year - - -
iv)  Amount of interest accrued and unpaid as at March 31/April 1, - - -
v)  Amount of estimated interest due and payable for the period from April - - -

1,2018 to actual date of payment or Board meeting date (whichever is

earlier)
vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - - -

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are '

actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a

deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprise Development Act, 2006

Segment Reporting

The Company’s Chief financial officer (CFO) and Managing director (MD) have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker,
examine the Company’s performance on an entity level. The Company has only one reportable segment i.e. microfinance lendings, The
Company does not have any reportable geographical segment. Thus the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying value of segment
assets and segment liabilities, total costs incurred to acquire segment assets, total amount of charge of depreciation during the period are all
reflected in the financial statements. No single customer contributes more than 10% of the total revenue earned during the year.
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41.  Related Party Disclosure

As per the requirement of Ind AS 24, on related party disclosures, the name of the related parties with the description of the relationship and
transactions between the reporting enterprise and its related parties, as identified by the management are as follows :

411 List of related parties

Nature of relationship Name of the party
Ultimate holding company Centrum Capital Limited (from June 30, 2019)
Holding company Centrum Retail Services Limited (from June 30, 2019)

Centrum Capital Limited (Upto June 29, 2019)

List of Fellow subsidiaries Centrum Microcredit Limited
with whom transacted during the year Centrum Securities Private Limited
Centrum Housing Finance Limited
Centrum Wealth Management Limited
Centrum Broking Limited
Centrum Direct Limited
Centrum Defence System Limited
Centrum Alternatives LLP
Centrum REMA LLP
Centrum Investment Advisors Limited
Club 7 Holidays Private Limited
Centrum Retail Services Limited (Upto June 29, 2019)
Axis Spaces Private Limited (Upto March 31, 2019)

Key management personnel (KVIP) Ranjan Ghosh (Managing Director and CEO)
Mr. G. S. Sundararajan (Independent Director)
Mr. Rishad K. Byramjee (Independent Director)
Mr. R.S. Reddy (Independent Director)
Mrs. Dipali Seth (Independent Director)
Mr. S.K. Apte (Independent Director)

41.2  Transactions with Related parties during the year

For the year ended 31 March,

No. Nature of Transaction Name of Party
2020 2019

1 Issue of equity shares Centrum Capital Limited - 12,450.86

2 Loans given Centrum Retail Services Limited 7,400.00 -
Centrum Capital Limited ’ 4,585.00 1,300.00
Centrum Microcredit Limited - 2,800.00
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 11,945.00 -
Club 7 Holidays Private Limited 150.00 -
Axis Spaces Private Limited - 360.00

3 Loan repayment Centrum Capital Limited 2,185.00 3,000.00
Centrum Retail Services Limited 4,300.00 -
Centrum Microcredit Limited - 2,800.00
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 10,985.00 -
Axis Spaces Private Limited - 2,789.44

4  Loan taken Centrum Capital Limited - 2,500.00
Centrum Housing Finance Limited 500.00 1,000.00
Centruin Microcredit Limited 800.00 -
Axis Spaces Private Limited - 575.00

5 Loan repaid during the year Centrum Capital Limited - 2,500.00
Centrum Retail Services Limited - 21,250.00
Centrum Housing Finance Limited 500.00 1,000.00
Centrum Microcredit Limited 800.00 -

Axis Spaces Private Limited - 1,975.96
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41. Related Party Disclosure (Continued)

41.2 Transactions with Related parties during the ycar (Continued)
No. Nature of Transaction Name of Party For e seareded D1, Misah;
) 2020 2019
6 Investment in Compulsory Convertible Debentures Centrum Microcredit Limited 1,500.00 -
during the year
7  Consideration received for sale of portfolio on Centrum Microcredit Limited 1,767.41 -
Direct Assignment
8  Subscription to MLD Centrum Wealth Management Limited - 6,670.94
9  MLD repaid including accrued interest® Centrum Wealth Management Limited 10,841.87 845.20
* - MLDs were directly purchased from the market by the companies due to the which same is not disclosed by the Company. However, at the time of redemption
amount is repaid to related party holding the MLDs as on that date.
10 Advance taken Centrum Retail Services Limited - 3,456.00
11 Advance repaid Centrum Retail Services Limited - 3,456.00
12 Sharing of Economic Benefits Centrum Retail Services Limited 639.43 -
13 Rent income Centrum Capital Limited - 68.70
Centrum Microcredit Limited 0.09 0.01
Centrum Retail Services Limited 24.25 18.18
15 Service fees income Centrum Retail Services Limited 2.78 -
Centrum Microcredit Limited 7.50 -
JBCG Advisory Services Private Limited 21.53 -
16 Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company Centrum Capital Limited - 45.54
‘ Centrum Microcredit Limited - 0.75
Centrum REMA LLP 1.23 -
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 0.61 -
Centrum Housing Finance Limited - 0.20
17  Advisory fees income Centrum Wealth Management Limited - 7.00
18 Interest income Centrum Capital Limited 116.26 39.52
Centrum Retail Services Limited 287.97 3.59
Club 7 Holidays Private Limited 0.92 -
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 105.00 -
Centrum Microcredit Limited 59.84 29.69
Axis Spaces Private Limited - 281.70
19 Interest expenses Centrum Capital Limited - 218.65
Centrum Retail Services Limited 151.33 279.35 -
Centrum Housing Finance Limited 7.84 19.29
Centrum Microcredit Limited 6.13 -
Axis Spaces Private Limited - 119.50
Tt
) > B ¢ Sfge
20 Interest subvention Centrum Capital Limited f‘{ o 5 - 588.68
(Refer note 23.B (f)Capital Contribution ) /: Yy 4 N
21 TInvestment service fees expenses Centrum Wealth Management Limited _ ',( - 95.70
a2\
22 Rent expenses Centrum Capital Limited \é‘; s S 3.78 20,06
Centrum Retail Services Limited D el 28.23 49,31
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 11.28 7.60
Centrum Broking Limited 496 -
23 Electricity expenses paid on behalf of the Centrum Capital Limited 0.73 -
Company
Centrum Retail Services Limited 16.71 10.52
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 1.28 -
Centrum Broking Limited 0.47 -
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41. Related Party Disclosure (Continued)

41.2 Transactions with Related parties during the year (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March,

No. Nature of Transaction Name of Party
2020 2019
24  Printing and stationery, postage and couricr and  Cenirum Retail Services Limited 2.73 0.46
telephone expense Centrum Wealth Management Limited 0.46 -
25 Travelling expense Club7 Holidays Private Limited 1.30 2738
26 Arrangers fees Centrum Capital Limited 72.50 47,00
Centrurn Wealth Management Limited 54.27 375
27 Placement fees income Centrum Capital Limited S 31.50
28 Reimbursement of expenses Centrum Capital Limited 8.49 -
Centrum Retail Services Limited 5.66 -
Centrum Microcredit Limited 1.9 B
Centrum Broking Limited 312 -
Centrum REMA LLP 1.98 3.68
Centrum Wealth Management Limited - 1.84
29  Group allocation income Centrum Retail Services Limited - 154.00
30 Group allocation expense Centrum Retail Services Limited 375,78
31 Security deposit received Centrum Retail Services Limited - 59.46
32 Security deposit repaid Centrum Retail Services Limited 50.00 9.46
33 Corporate Guarantees issued by ultimate holding  Centrum Capital Limited 3,366.00 16,000.00
Company on behalf of Company
34 Commission and Brokerage expenses Centrum Broking Limited 937.40 634,59
Centrum Investment Advisors Limited 22,69 -
35 Managerial remuneration Mr. Ranjan Ghosh 345 351.09
36 Indemnification (Refer note 6.1) Centrum Capital Limited - 2,500.00
37 Compulsory Convertible Debentures issued Centrum Capital Limited - 1,509.14
Centrum Retail Services Limited 1,509 14 -
41.3  Balances with Related parties as at year end
. . As at March 31, As at April 1
No. Nat f Transact N f Part i
o ature of Transaction ame of Party 2020 2019 2018
1 Interest Receivable Centrum Securities Private Limited - - 0.36
2 Commission and Brokerage Payable Centrum Broking Limited 318.55 - 0.30
3 Corporate Guarantee received Centrum Capital Limited 6,826.06 17,272.63 13,918.48
4 Loan asset Centrum Capital Limited 2,400.13 - 1,709.46
Centrum Retail Services Limited 3,104.68 - -
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 961,62 - -
Club 7 Holidays Private Limited 150.92 - -
Axis Spaces Private Limited - - 2,429.44
5 Investment Centrum Microcredit Limited 1,500.00 - -
6 Margin Balance with Broker Centrum Broking Limited 1,023.49 49.92 964.39
7  Other Receivable JBCG Advisors Private Limited 17.69 - -
Centrum Microcredit Limited - - 23.23
8  Other Financial Liability Centrum Capital Limited 78.30 . -
Centrum Broking Limited 318.55 - -
9  Closing Debt Securities Centrum Retail Services Limited 1,505.14 1,509.14 -
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 1,065.00 - -
10 Security deposit Centrum Retail Services Limited 9.46 59.46 -
11 Trade Payable Centrurn Retail Services Limited 98.84 - -
Centrum REMA LLP 1.28 - -
Club7 Holidays Private Limited - 9.45 6.91
12 Payable on the accounts of assignments Centrum Microcredit Limited 1,184.26 < -
13 Borrowing Axis Spaces Private Limited - 1,400.96
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42. Employee benefits - Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'

A. Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident fund contributions which are defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the schemes, the

Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss towards contribution to defined contribution plans which

are included under contribution to provident and other funds:

Provident fund

B. Defined Benefit Plan

For the year ended 31 March,

2020
114.83

2019
78.46

a) The Company has a funded defincd benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, an
employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefits. The level of benefits provided depend on the member’s length
of service and salary at retirement age. The fund is managed by an independent Insurance Company. The Insurance Company is responsible for

the administration of the plan assets and for defining the investment strategies.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and

amounts recognised in the balance shect for the respective plans:

For the year ended 31 March,

Change in defined benefit obligations: 2020 2019

Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the year 75.19 10.33
Current service cost 2491 13.47
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 5.83 0.81
Remeasurements (gains) / losses - -

Actuarial (gains) / losses - =
arising from changes in demographic assumptions (0.13) -
arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.08 0.80
arising from changes in experience adjustments 10.09 {7.98)
Transfer in/(out) of liability - -
Benefits paid from plan assets {34.06) -
Net transfer in / (out) (Including the effect of any business combinations/ divestures) - 57.76
Defined benefit obligation, end of the year 81.91 75.19
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year 525 =
Interest income 0.41 -
Remeasurements gains / (losses) - -
Return on plan assets, (excluding amount included in net Interest expense) 1.43 0.25
Employer’s contributions 69.94 5.00
Transfer in/(out) of assets - -
Net transfer in / (out) (Including the etfect of any business combinations/ divestures) - -
Benefits paid (34.06) -

Fair value of plan assets, end of the year 42.97 5.25

As at March 31, Asat April 1,
b) Amount recognized in the balance sheet consists of: 2020 2019 2018

Present value of defined benefit obligation 3191 75.19 10.33

Fair value of plan assets 4297 5.25 -

Net liability 38.94 69.94 10.33

For the year ended 31 March,
¢) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows; 2020 2019
Service Cost

Current service cost 2491 13.47

Past service cost - -

Total Service cost (1) 24.91 13.47

Net interest cost

Interest expense on DBO 5.83 0.81

Interest expense / (inconie) on plan assets - 041) -

Interest expense / (income) on reimbursement rights - -

Interest expense on effect of (asset celling)/onerous liability - -

Total Interest cost 5.42 0.81

Remeasurements of Other Long term benefits (0.11) 0
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit & Loss 30.22 14.28

(i+ii+ii) (g
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For the year ended 31 March,

202
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) "
Due to changes in demographic assumptions (0.13) -
Due to changes in financial assumptions 6.08 0.80
Due to changes in experience adjustments 10.09 (7.98)
Return on plan assets (excl. interest income) (1.43) {0.25)
Return on reimbursement rights 3 =
Changes in asset celling/onerous liability - -
Total remeasurement in other comprehensive income (OCI) V) 8.61 (7.43)
Total Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit & Loss and OCI {vi) =(iv + v) 38.83 6.85

d) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans and post retirement medical benefits at their fair

value on the balance sheet, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31,2019
Discount rate 6.56% 7.76%
Salary escalation rate* 0% p.a. for next 2 years, 6.26% for next 5.00%

1 year, starting from the 3rd year 5%
p.a. thereafter, starting from the 4th

year.
Expected return on plan assets 6.56% 7.76%
Rate of employee turnover 10.00% 5.00%
Mortality rate during employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-  Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-
08) Ult 08) Ult
Mortality rate after employment N.A.

* takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors

e) The major categories of plan assets arc as follows:
As at 31 March,
2020 2019
a) Insurer managed funds 4297 5.25
b) Cash S .

f) Ympact on defined benefit obligation - Sensitivity Analysis
For the year ended 31 March,

2020 2020 2019
% Rate Amount % Rate
Increase by 100 basis points
i) Impact of change in discount rate 7.56% (5.37) 8.76%
i) Impact of change in salary growth rate 7.26% 6.18 6.00%
iit) Impact of change in employee attrition rate 11.00% 0.73 6.00%
Decrease by 100 basis points
1) Impact of change in discount rate 5.56% 6.08 6.76%
if) Impact of change in salary growth rate 6.26% 4.13) 4.00%
iit) Impact of change in employee attrition rate 9.00% 0.68 4.00%

Asat April 1,

Amount

(6.25)
6.59

0.68

7.23
(5.76)
(0.88)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculatmg the sensmvny of the defmed benefxt obhgatlon to
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g) Maturity
The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end as follows:

i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
V)
vi)

vii)

Particulars
1st Following Year

2nd Following Year
3rd Following Year
4th Following Year
5th Following Year
Sum of Years 6to 10

Sum of Years 11 and above

As at 31 March, As at April 1,
2020 2019 2018
3.87 3.20 0.26
5.22 3.39 0.26
6.73 4.09 0.30
16.07 5.03 0.36
7.90 13.45 0.85
35.92 2741 5.13
66.79 122.48 21.07

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8 years (previous year - 12 years).

C  Compensated Absences
The principal assumptions used in determining obligations for the Company are shown below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2020
Rate of discounting 6.56%
Expected rate of salary increase 0% p.a. for next 2 years, 6.26% for next

1 year, starting from the 3rd year 5%
p.a. thereafter, starting from the 4th

year.
Rate of employee turnover 10.00%
Mortality Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-
08) Ult

Particulars
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss

As at March 31, 2019
7.76%

5.00%

5.00%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-
08) Ult

Year ended March 31,
2020 2019
(30.69) 0.47
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43. Employee Stock Option Plan

Employees’ Stock Options Scheme (ESOS) :
During the year, 129,356 Employee Stock Options have been granted to the employees of the Company (Previous year 29,26,031).
The weighted average share price for stock options exercised during the year was Rs.10 (previous year Rs. 10).

Particulars Scheme I Scheme I Scheme XI Centrum Capital Ltd. Scheme X

- Scheme*
Date of grant 03 April 2018 20 June 2018 20 June 2018 14 December 2018 14 October 2019
Date of board approval 22 March 2018 22 March 2018 22 March 2018 12 December 2018 22 March 2018
Date of Shareholder’s approval 02 April 2018 02 April 2018 02 April 2018 30 March 2018 02 April 2018
Number of options granted 1,681,031 600,000 545,000 250,000 129,356
Method of settlement Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
Vesting period 4 Years 4 Years . 5 Years S Years 4 Years
Weighted average remaining contractual life (Vesting period) 4 Years 4 Years 5 Years 5 Years 4 Years
Granted but not vested 1,681,031 600,000 545,000 150,000 129,356
Vested but not exercised - - - 100,600 -
Weighted average share price at the date of exercise for stock options exercised NA NA NA NA NA
Exercise period 4 Years 4 Years 5 Years 4 Years 4 Years
Weighted Average Fair value of options (granted but not vested) as on grant 24,20 24.42 24.80 37.33 22.37

The estimated fair value of options was calculated by applying Black and Scholes Model. Below mentioned are the model inputs used for calculating estimated fair value.

Particulars Scheme I Scheme I Scheme I Centrum Capital Ltd. Scheme X
Scheme*

Range of Risk free interest rate 7.55% 8.06% 7.98% 7.44% 6.75%

Dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Expected volatility 16.16% 17.00% 16.06% 19.18% 17.74%

Vesting of options is subject to continued employment during the vesting period.

The activity in the Scheme-I, Scheme-II and Centrum Capital Ltd. Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 is set below:
Number of options

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2020 2019

Scheme-1 : Face value of Rs. 10 each
Exercise price Rs. 10 each

Options outstanding as at beginning of the year 21,51,031
Add: Granted 1,29,356 22,81,031
Less: Exercised

Less: Forfeited

Less: Lapsed 55,000 1,30,000
Option outstanding end of the year 22,25,387 21,51,031
Exercisable at the end of the year - -

Scheme-1I : Face value of Rs. 10 each
Exercise price Rs. 10 each

Option outstanding as at beginning of the year 5,45,000
Add Granted
Less : Exercised
Less: Forfeited
Less: Lapsed

5,45,000

Option outstanding as at end of the year 5,45,000 5,45,000
Exercisable at the end of the year : - o

Centrum Capital Ltd. Scheme*
Exercise price Rs. 10 each

Option outstanding as at beginning of the year 2,50,000
Add Granted o
Less : Exercised
Less: Forfeited
Less: Lapsed

2,50,000

Option outstanding as at end of the year 2,50,000 2,50,000 / -{‘
N §
Exercisable at the end of the year {

Other Information regarding employee share based payment plan is as below

For the year ended March 31,

Particulars 2020 2019
Expense arising from employee share based payment plans 181.26 144,57 e
Expense arising from share and stock option Plan - -
Closing balance of liability for cash share appreciation plan o - -
Expense arising from increase in fair value of liability for cash share appreciation plan - -
Total carrying amount at the end of the year in Employee stock option under Other Equity 299.80 144.57
Total carrying amount at the end of the year in Capital contribution under Other Equity* 26.03 -

* Employee Stock Options of Centrum Capital Limited (Ukiimate Holding Company) are given to employees of Centrum Financial Services Limited.




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31, 2020

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)
44.  Business Combination
44.A Summary of acquisition
During the year ended March 31, 2019 Company has purchased the Supply Chain Finance business as of the closing date of December

30, 2018 as per the Business Transfer Agreement with L&T Finance Limited.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Purchase consideration

Amount
Cash paid 65,235.01
Total purchase consideration (A) 65,235.01

The acquisition date fair valucs of the assets taken over and liabilities assumed as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

Particulars Ameoeunt
Assets taken over:

Principal O/s 64,616.74
Interest O/s 294,01
Overdue Interest O/s 9.58
Liabilities assumed:

Advance interest balance 632.10
Excess money lying in customer's account 258.09
Gratuity & leave encashment (Liabilitics held under SCF Business as on Sept 30, 2018) 96.03
Net identifiable assets acquired (B) 63,934.11
Calculation of goodwill Amount
Consideration transferred (A) 65,235.01
Less: Net identifiable assets acquired (B) 63,934.11
Goodwill (C)=(A-B) 1,300.90

There were no acquisitions in the year ended March 31, 2020.

44.B Purchase consideration - cash outflow
For the year ended March 31,

Particulars 2020 2019
Outflow of cash to acquire the supply chain finance business - 65,235.01
Net outflow of cash - investing activities - 65,235.01

Acquisition related costs

Acquisition related costs of INR 132.86 Lakh are included in other expenses in the statement of profit or loss and in operating cash flows
in the statement of cash flows.

Amount and factors for recognition of goodwill

(1) Amount of goodwill recognised:

% 1300.91 Lakh - The amount of goodwill was determined following the fair valuation method. The fair value of loan portfolio is
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using market lending rate as at the valuation date .The fair value of gratuity and
leave encashment payable is taken 1o be at the value as on December 30, 2018 as agreed to by the management at the time of acquisition,
since this value is based on the actuarial valuation on the date of acquisition.

(2) Factors for recognition of goodwill:
Since the acquisition cost exceeded the net amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the excess amount is recorded as goodwill.
The goodwill primarily reflects the excess earning capacity and synergistic effects with the existing business.

Goodwill is considered as a tax deductible expense.
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45, Fair Value Measurement
45,4 Carrying value and fair value of financial instruments
45.A.1 The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2020 are as follows.
At Amortised cost At l::ﬁv:l):e&n::ugh ‘Ahtf:g;voﬂ&e Tata‘lI:::ymg Fair value Hierarchy Total Fair value
Financial Assets
1 Cash and cash equivalents 5,624.56 - - 5,624.56 Level 1 5,624.56
2 Other Bank balances 2,220.30 - - 2,220.30 Level 1 2,220.30
3 Derivative assets - 1,638.80 - 1,638.80 Level 1 1,638.80
4 Loans 84,388.70 . . 84,388.70 Level 3 84,548.23
5 Investments
- Listed equity shares - 0.25 - 025 Level 1 0.25
- Perpetual Subordinated Tier I bonds - 100.00 - 100.00 Level 3 (Refer note 51) 100.00
- Debentures 3,042.45 - - 3,042.45 Level 3 2,952.34
- Cumulative Convertible Debentures - 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 Level 2 1,500.00
6 Other financial assets
- Security deposits 16.32 - - 16.32 Level 3 16.32
- Margin with broker 1,023.49 - - 1,023.49 Level 1 1,023.49
- Others 33.18 - - 33.18 Level 3 33.18
Total 96,349.00 3,239.05 - 99,588,05 99,657.47
Financial Liabilities
1) Denvative liabilities - 3,401.88 - 3,401.88 Level 2 3,401.88
2) Trade payables 238.32 - - 238.32 Level 3 238.32
3) Debt securities (Quoted)** 48,693.35 - - 48,693.35 Level 1 48,693.35
4) Debt securities (Unquoted)™** 3,382.91 - - 3,382.91 Level 2 3,382.91
5) Borrowings (other than debt securities) ** 19,535.16 - - 19,535.16 Level 3 19,535.16
6) Deposits 256.72 - - 256.72 Level 3 256.72
7) Lease liabilities 11.01 - - 11.01 Level 3 11.01
8) Other financial liabilities 1,142.60 - - 1,142.60 Level 3 1,142.60
Total 73,260.07 3,401.88 - 76,661.95 76,661.95

** including accrued interest

45.A.2 The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2019 are as follows.

At Amortised cost Al i?:t;‘il:eﬂ::ugh &:_f:g;glé‘; Tota:,:la:':ymg Fair value Hierarchy Total Fair value
Financial Assets
1 Cash and cash equivalents 4,704.11 - - 4,704.11 Level 1 4,704.11
2 Other Bank balances 5,564.54 - - 5,564.54 Level 1 5,564.54
3 Derivaiive assets - 705.26 - 705.26 Level 1 705.26
4 Loans 1,09,287.84 - - 1,09,287.84 Level 3 1,11,693.11
5 Investments
- Listed equity shares - 3,408.80 - 3,408.80 Level 1 3,408.80
- Perpetual Subordinated Tier I bonds - 482.08 - 482.08 Level 1 482.08
- Debentures 2,802.89 - - 2,802.89 Level 3 2,911.67
6 Other financial assets
- Security deposits 7.22 - - 7.22 Level 3 722
- Margin with broker 49.92 - - 49.92 Level 1 49.92
- Others 79.26 - - 79.26 Level 3 79.26
- Receivable from non banking financial companies 1,918.86 - - 1,918.86 Level 3 1,918.86
Total 1,24.,414.64 4,596.14 - 1,29,010.78 1,31,524.83
Financial Liabilities
1) Derivative liabilities - 2,919.64 - 2,919.64 Level 2 2,919.64
2) Trade payables 166.69 - - 166.69 Level 3 166.69
3) Debt securities (Quoted)* 35,487.63 - - 35,487.63 Level 1 35,487.63
4) Debt securities (Unquoted)* 1,509.14 - - 1,509.14 Level 2 1,509.14
5) Borrowings (other than debt securities) * 63,778.11 - - 63,778.11 Level 3 63,778.11
6) Deposits 521.04 - - 521.04 Level 3 521.04
7) Lease liabilities 47.25 - - 47.25 Level 3 4725
8) Other financial liabilities 1,600.69 - - 1,600.69 Level 3 1,600.69
Total 1,03,110.55 2,919.64 - 1,06,030.19 1,06,030.19
* including accrued interest
45.A.3 The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at April 1, 2018 are as follows.
At Amortised cost Al 1:';'; a‘l)l;elf‘l:::ugh atrf:g;‘gl&e Tnta‘llzla::ymg Fair value Hierarchy ‘Total Fair value
Financial Assets
1 Cash and cash equivalents 6,269.61 - - 6,269.61 Level 1 6,269.61
2 Other Bank balances 4,122.80 - - 4,122.80 Level 1 4,122.80
3 Derivative assets | - 935.26 - 935.26 Level 1 935.26
4 Loans 33,959.89 - - 33,959.89 Level 3 34,528.98
5 Investments
- Listed equity shares - 4.66 - 4.66 Level 1 4.66
- Perpetual Subordinated Tier I bonds - 499.17 - ’ 499.17 Level 1 499.17
- Secunity receipts - 725.38 - 725.38 Level 3 72538
- Debentures 2,523.71 - - 2,523.71 Level 3 2,558.30
6 Other financial assets - -
- Security deposits 381 - - 3.81 Level 3 3.81
- Margin with broker 964.39 B - 964.39 Level 1 964.39
- Others 382.75 - - 382.75 Level 3 382.75
Total 48,226.96 2,164.47 - 50,391.43 50.
Financial Liabilitics
1) Derivative liabilities - 1,862.72 - 1,862.72 Level 2 1,862.72
2) Trade payables 123.37 - - 123.37 Level 3 123.37
3) Debt securities (Quoted)* 16,485.63 - - 16,485.63 Level 1 16,485.63
4) Debt securities (Unquoted)* - - Level 2 -
Y 5) Borrowings (other than debt securities) * 17,751.77 - - 17,751.77 Level 3 17,751.77
e - ST\, . 6) Deposits 2,041.65 - - 2,041.65 Level 3 2,041.65
L PLND Lease liabilities 10.81 - - 1081 o8 10.81
O ™~ 'v&Other financial liabilities 39.90 = - 39.90 39.90
;{otal 36,453.13 1,862.72 - 38,315.85

< *including accrued interest
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45, Fair Value Measurement (Continued)
45.B Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and
measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets {such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities) is based on

quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3,

There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 except in the case of
perpetual subordinated Tier 1 bonds where the Company has changed the Level from 1 to Level 3 (Refer Note 51). Fair Value of YES Bank
Perpetual Bonds as of March 31, 2020 Rs 100 Lakhs and as at March 31, 2019 Rs 482.08 Lakhs

45.B.1  Financial instruments measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements as at March 31, 2020 is as follows.

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets

1 Derivative assets 1,638.80 - = 1,638.80

2 Investments
- Listed equity shares 0.25 - - 0.25
- Perpetual Subordinated Tier I bonds - - 100.00 100.00

- Debentures - - - -

- Cumulative Convertible Debentures - 1,500.00 ) - 1,500.00
Total 1,639.05 1,500.00 100.00 3,239.05

45.B.2 Financial instruments measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements as at March 31, 2019 is as follows.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
1 Derivative assets 705.26 - . 705.26
2 Invesiments
- Listed equity shares 3,408.80 - - 3,408.80
- Perpetual Subordinated Tier I bonds 482.08 - - 482.08
Total 4,596.14 - - 4,596.14




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31, 2020

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

45 Disclosures on Financial Instruments (Continued)

45B.3  Financial instruments measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements as at April 1, 2018 is as follows.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets

1 Derivative assets 935.26 - - 935.26

2 Investments
- Listed equity shares 4.66 - - 4.66
- Perpetual Subordinated Tier I bonds 499.17 - - 499.17
- Security receipts - 725.38 - 725.38
Total 1,439.09 725.38 - 2,164.47

Note: Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, deposits, other financials assets, trade

payables and other financial liabilities (excluding lease liability) are considered to be approximately equal to their fair values due to their short term
nature.

The fair values of loans, receivables and loans in the nature of debentures are calculated using a portfolio-based approach, grouping loans as far as
possible into homogenous groups based on similar characteristics. The fair value is then extrapolated to the portfolio using discounted cash flow
models that incorporate interest rate estimates considering all significant characteristics of the loans. This fair value is then reduced by impairment
allowance which is already calculated incorporating probability of defaults and loss given defaults to arrive at fair value net of risk.

Debt securities are recorded at fair values by undertaking valuation techniques and thus, the carrying values are approximately equal to the fair
values.

The fair value of the borrowing and lcase liability is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

Valuation techniques of financial instruments, other than those which are subsequently measured at amortised cost, have been arrived at
as under

Fair values of instruments designated under FVTPL are recorded at market values (also refer note 51).
(a) Investment in CCD

Investment in CCD's are valued by an independent valuer by bifurcating the equity component and the debt component in CCD.

The valuation is done by determining the fair value of equity shares of the Company and adding the present value of future interest to be

received by the holder over tenure of CCD and subtracting the present value of dividend which holder will forgo due to non-conversion of
CCD during the tenure.

(b) Investment in Equity shares are valued using the quoted market prices.

(¢) Investment in Bonds are valued by using the last traded prices available on the stock exchange.

Off-balance sheet positions

Estimated fair values of off-balance sheet positions are based on discounted cash flow models, as explained above, which incorporate the credit risk
element through the discount factor.
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31, 2020

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

47,  Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements from its
regulators and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value,

The piliars of its pelicy are as follows:

a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order to minimize liquidity risk.

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liability issuances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the financial strength of the balance sheets is
preserved.

¢) Manage financial market risks arising from Interest rate, equity prices and minimise the impact of market volatility on earnings.

d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise shareholder returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of balance sheet.

This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-cconomic factors affecting business environment, financial market conditions and interest rates environment,

No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years except those incorporated on account of regulatory amendments. However,
they are under constant review by the Board

Regulatory capital

As an NBFC, the RBI requires us to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio ("CRAR") consisting of Tier I and Tier II capital of 15% of our aggregate risk
weighted assets. Further, the total of our Tier II capital cannot exceed 100% of our Tier I capital at any point of time. The capital management process of the Company
ensures to maintain a healthy CRAR at all the times.

The Company has complied with the notification RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 “Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards”
issued by Reserve Bank of India.

Please refer note 55.1 - "Capital Adequacy Ratio" under additional disclosures related to RBI (note 55) for the details of the same

48.  Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars As at March 31, Cash Flows Changes in Fair Others As at March 31,
2019 (net) value {net)* 2020
i) Debt securities 36,996.77 17,649.31 - {2,569.82) 52,076.26
i1) Borrowings other than debt securities 63,778.11 (46,531.82) - 2,288.87 19,535.16
iif) Deposits 521.04 (264.32) - - 256.72
Total 1,01,295.92 (29,146.83) - (280.95) 71,868.14

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2019

3 As at April 1, 2018 Cash Flows Changes in Fair Others As at March 31,
Particulars +
(net) value (net)y* 2019
i) Debt securities 16,485.63 19,847.48 - 663.66 36,996.77
i) Borrowings other than debt securities 17,751.77 46,488.70 - (462.35) 63,778.11
iii) Deposits 2,041.65 (1,520.61) - - 521.04
Total 36,279.05 64,815.56 - 201.31 1,01,295.92

49,  Tracsferred financial assets

49.1 Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety but where the Company has continuing involvement

The Company has not transferred any assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Company continues to have continuing invelvement.

49.2 Transferred financial assets that are derccognised in their entirety

The Company has assigned loans (earlier measured at amortised cost) by way of direct assignment. As per the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and
rewards related to these assets were transfcrred to the extent of 90% of the assets transferred to the buyer, the assets have been de-recognised from the Company’s
Balance Sheet. The table below summariscs the carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets :

As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 1, 2018

Particulars 2020 2019
Assignment

Carrying amount of de-recogniscd financial asset 2,040.64 -
Carrying amount of retained assets at amortised cost 431.18 *
Total 2,471.82 =
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50,

51.

52.

53,

Foreign exchange earnings/outflow
The foreign exchange earnings and outflow is Rs. Nil during the year ended March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: Rs. Nil)

'The Company had invested in 50 Perpetual Subordinated Unsecured Basel III Compliant Additional Tier I Bonds (“AT 1 Bonds™) issued by Yes Bank Limited aggregating to
Rs.500 Lakhs on October 18, 2017. Yes Bank Limited has fully written down AT I Bonds in their financial statements for year ended 31 March 2020. Axis Trustee,
representing the Bondholders, has filed a Writ Petition in the Hon’ble Bombay High Court to seek a restraining order against the Issuer to unilaterally write down the bonds
to zero. Subsequently, the Honourable Court has directed that any action taken by Yes Bank Limited shall be subject to outcome of the writ petition. As the market valuation
of this investment could not be done owing the investment being a subject matter of litigation, the Company has made an internal assessment and believes that the
recoverable value from the AT I Bonds as on March 31, 2020 is Rs.100 Lakhs.

The Company along with JBCG Advisors Private Limited (JBCG) has entered into a facility agreement as co-borrowers, of an amount upto Rs. 10,000 lakhs. The entire
facility is drawn down by JBCG. In addition to the security provided by JBCG, the Company has provided identified Loan Receivables in connection with its Supply Chain
Business of the Company, to the extent of Rs. 10,000 lacs as at March 31, 2020. (as at March 31, 2019 — Rs Nil).

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant impact and volatility in the global and Indian financial markets and
slowdown in economic activities. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has issued guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package on March 27, 2020, April 17, 2020 and
23 May 2020 and in accordance therewith, the Company has engaged with customers and offered repayment moratorium to various eligible borrowers classified as standard,
even if the said amounts were overdue on February 29, 2020, excluding collections made in March 2020 prior to the offer. For all such accounts, where the moratorium is
granted, the asset classification i.e. staging will remain at a standstill during the moratorium period (i.¢., the number of days past due shall exclude the moratorium period for
the purpose of asset classification as per the policy). Extension of such moratorium benefit to the borrowers as per the COVID-19 Regulatory Package of the Reserve Bank
of India (RBI), by itself, is not considered to result in significant increase in the credit risk as per Ind AS 109 for staging of accounts. The lockdowns started in late March
and hence there was minimal impact on performance during the last quarter of the financial year. The Company has made provisions as per the adopted ECL model for
impairment on financial instruments. The additional provision as required by the RBI circular dated April 17, 2020 under Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning norms (IRACP norms) has been considered for computing the provision as per IRACP norms to comply with the circular dated March 13, 2020 and credited
such additional provision by way of an appropriation to Impairment Reserve. Further, the Company has considered the moratorium and various other measures taken by
Government and regulators and have assessed that no further provisioning on account COVID 19 is required at this time in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, the
Company expects that all other assets of the Company are recoverable. The impact of COVID -19 is dynamic, evolving and uncertain and impact assessment is based on the
current situation.
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54,

First-time adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2020, are the first financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up
to and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133
of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).

The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 the comparative information
presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 1, 2018 (the Company's
date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in
accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act
(previous GAAP or Indian GAAP or IGAAP). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position,
financial performance and cash flows is sct out in 1he following tables and notes.

Optional exemptions availed

Ind AS 101 First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards' allows first-time adopters certain voluntary exemptions from the retrospective application of
certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions:

a) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial
statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. Accordingly, the
Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their previous GAAP carrying value.

b} Business combination
Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specitic date prior to the transition date. This provides relief
from full retrospective application that would require restatement of all business combinations prior to the transition date,
The Company has elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its transition date. Business combinations occurring prior
to the transition date have not been restated.

d) Financial ins¢ruments

Under Ind AS 109, if an entity measures a financial instrument on initial recognition based on valuation techniques that only use observable market data or
current market transactions in the same instrument, and the fair value at initial recognition is different from the transaction price, then it is required to recognise
the ‘day one’ gain or loss at initial recognition of this financial instrument. Ind AS 101 allows an entity to apply the ‘day one’ gain or loss recognition
requirement of Ind AS 109 prospectively to transactions entered into on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.

The Company has opted for this exemption to recognise the “day one” gain or loss on initial recognition arising due to difference in transaction cost and fair
value prospectively for transactions entered into on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.

ind AS 109 requires a financial asset to be measured at amortised cost if it meets two tests that deal with the nature of the business that holds the assets and the
nature of the cash flows arising on those assets. A first-time adopter must assess whether a financial asset meets the conditions on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

The Company has applied the following exceptions from full retrospective application of Ind AS as mandatorily required under Ind AS 101:

a) Estimates
On an assessment of the estimates made under previous GAAP the Company has concluded that there was no necessity to revise the estimaies under Ind AS
except where estimates were required by Ind AS and not required by previous GAAP or the basis of measurement were different {e.g. impairment of loans and
other assets as per expected credit losses).

b) De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of
transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the
entity’s choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial asscts and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past
transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions. The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS
109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.

¢) Impairment of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to use rcasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date
that financial instruments were initially recognised and compare that to the credit risk at the date of transition to Ind AS. Basis this assessment, the Company has
concluded that there is no significant increase in the credit risk since the initial recognition.

d) Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets (eg. loans and investments) on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. The Company has assessed financial assets at the date of transition and has classified all its investments as
measured at fair value through profit and loss which are measured at cost. All loans are measured at amortised cost.

£

—
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34, First-time adoption of Ind AS

54.C  Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the
reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

54.C.1 Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as per previous GAAP and Ind AS

As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Particulars Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,704,11 “ 4,704.11 6,269.61 - 6,269.61
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 5,576.78 (12.24) 5,564.54 4,12933 (6.53) 4,122.80
Derivative financial instruments 705.26 - 705.26 935.26 - 935.26
Loans 1,10,203.88 916.04)  1,09,287.84 34,253.55 (293.66)  33,959.89
Investments 6,836.06 (142.29) 6,693.77 3,806.83 {5391} 3,752.92
Other financial assets 2,055.82 (0.56) 2,055.26 1,351.34 (0.39) 1,350.95
1,30,081.91 (1,071.13)  1,29,010.78 50,745.92 {354.49) 50,391.43
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 1,136.65 - 1,136.65 585.57 B 585.57
Deferred tax assets (net) 26553 334.83 600.36 128.27 205.44 33371
Investment property 3.454.48 - 3,454.48 3,510.95 - 3,510.95
Property, Plant and Equipment 114.55 - 114.55 75.20 - 75.20
Right of use - Asset - 45,76 45,76 - 10.61 10.61
{ntangible assets under development - - - 147.15 - 147.15
Goodwill 1,560.77 (118.75) 1,442.02 141.11 - 141.11
Other intangible assets 162.56 - 162.56 8.86 - 2.86
Other non-financial assets 1,204.84 (967.01) 237.83 . 147.94 (118.44) 25.50
7,899.38 (705.17) 7,194.21 4,745.05 97.61 4,842.66
Total Assets 1,37,981,29 (1,776.30) _ 1,36,204.99 55,490.97 (256.88)  55,234.09
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - 2,915.64 2,919.64 - 1,862.72 1,862.72
Payables
(i)Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 51.03 - 51.03 6.91 - 6.91
small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 115.66 - 115.66 116.46 - 116.46
micro enterprises
(if) Other payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - - - - - -
small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than - - - - - -
micro enterprises
Debt securities 40,520.53 (3,523.76) 36,996.77 18,001.05 (1,515.42) 16,485.63
Borrowings (other than Debt sccurities) 64,151.84 (373.73) 63,778.11 17,867.74 (115.97) 17,751.77
Deposits 521.04 - 521.04 2,041.65 2.041.65
Lease Liabilities - 47.25 4725 - 10.81 10.81
Other financial liabilities 1,648.69 (48.00) 1,600.69 39.90 - 39.90
1,07,008.79 (978.60)  1,06,030.19 38,073.71 242.14 38,315.85
Non-financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net) 8908 . 89,08 89.08 . 29.08
Provisions 114.22 093 115.15 24.57 151 26.08
Other non-financial liabilities 993.43 45.87 1,039.30 210.86 22,50 233,36
1,196.73 46.80 1,243.53 324.51 24.01 348.52
EQUITY
Equity share capital 9,895.69 - '9,895.69 5,686.19 : 5,686.19
Other equity 19,880.08 (844.50)  19,035.58 11,406.56 (523.03)  10,883.53
Total equity 29,775.78 (844.51)  28,931.27 17,092.75 (523.03)  16,569.72

Total Liabilitics & Equity 1,37,981.30 (1,776.31) _ 1,36,204.99 55,490.97
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54, First-time adoption of Ind AS

54.C.2 Reconciliation of Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019 as per previous GAAP and Ind AS

Particulars Previous GAAP  Adjustments Ind AS
Revenue from operations

Interest income 8,809.71 61895 9.428.67
Rental income 86.89 - 86.89
Fees and commission income 640.11 (593.91) 46.20
Net gain on fair value changes 566.79 0.83 567.62
Other operating revenue . 41.53 - 41.53
Total revenue from operations 10,145.04 25.87 10,170.91
Other income 27.07 - 27.07
Total income 10,172.12 25.87 10,197.98
Expenses

Finance costs . 6,585.86 248,69 6,834.55
Impairment on financial instruments 487.85 716.94 1,204.79
Employee benefits expenses 2,116.13 1.78 2,11791
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses 130.83 (3.17) 127.66
Others expenses 831.64 125.10 956.74
Total expenses 10,152.31 1,089.34 11,241.65
Profit/(loss) before tax 19.79 (1,063.46) (1,043.67)
Tax expense: -

- Current tax 109.48 - 109.48
- Deferred tax (137.28) (131.46) (268.74)
Total tax expense (27.79) (131.46) (159.26)
Profit/(loss) for the period 47.58 (932.00) (884.41)

Other comprehensive income =
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -

- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations - 7.44 7.44
- Income tax relating to these items ' - 2.07) (2.07)
Other comprehensive income for the period - 5.37 5.37
Total comprehensive income for the period 47.58 {926.62) (879.04)
54.C.3 Reconciliation of Equity between previous GAAP and Ind AS: Notes Asat Asat
March 31,2019 April 1,2018
Equity as per previous GAAP 29,775.78 17,092.76
Adjustments:
EIR impact on financial assets ii (418.67) (331.03)
Impact of Ind AS 116 i&iii (2.02) (0.56)
EIR Impact on financial liabilities iv (40.00) (12.46)
Provision for expected credit losses on loan assets vi (742.97) (26.03)
Fair valuation of financial asset carried at FVTPL (20.22) (21.05)
Accrued interest on Stage 3 assets X 112.48 -
Adjustment on account of Ind AS 103 ix (118.75) -
Others 50.81 (337.35)
Tax impact of Ind AS adjustments vii 334.83 205.44
Total adjustments (844.51) (523.04)
Total equity as per Ind AS 28,931.27 16,569.72

54.C.4 Reconciliation of Profit as per Previous GAAP and Ind AS :

Year ended
March 31, 2019
Net profit after tax as per previous GAAP 47.58
Adjustments:
EIR impact on financial assets ii (87.64)
EIR impact on financial liabilities iv 344.14
Expected credit loss on financial assets vi (716.94)
Recognition of interest on Stage 3 assets X 112.48
Ind AS adjustment on account of interest subsidy from Holding Company (588.68)
Adjustment on account of Ind AS 103 ix (132.87)
Others 6.04
Deferred tax impact on above adjustments vii 131.48
Net profit / (loss) for the year ended under Ind AS (884.41)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) attributable to owners of the Company 5.37

Total comprehensive income / (loss) as per Ind AS (attributable to owners of the Company)

(#7904
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54. First-time adoption of Ind AS
Notes to first-time adoption:

i) Interest free lease deposits
Under the previous GAAP, interest free lease security deposits (that are refundable in cash on completion of the lease term) are recorded at their transaction
value. Under Ind AS, all financial assets except Trade Receivables are required to be initially recognised at fair value. Accordingly, the Company has fair valued
these security deposits under Ind AS. The difference between the fair value and transaction value of the security deposit on initial recognition has been
recognised as right to use asset. Subsequently, depreciation is charged to the statement of profit and loss for right to use asset over the tenure of the lease and
unwinding of security deposit is credited to the statement of profit and loss as income.

ii) Loan assets .
Under Indian GAAP, transaction income earned on loan assets was recognised upfront while under Ind AS, such income are included in the initial recognition
amount of financial assets and recognised as interest income using the effective interest method.

iii) Ind AS 116 - leases
Under Indian GAAP, payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease unless, the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation, to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases.
Ind AS 116 requires recognition of an asset (the right-of-use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals. In the Statement of Profit and Loss, lessees
presents interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation on the right-of-use asset.

iv) Borrowings and subordinated debt instruments
Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs incurred on debt instruments and borrowings was expensed over the tenure of the borrowing on straight line basis while
under Ind AS, such costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and recognised as interest expense using the effective interest
method.

v) Financiai guarantee given by parent
Under the previous GAAP, financial guarantee given by parent is not accounted. Under Ind AS, financial guarantee contracts are measured at initial recognition
at fair value and accounted as contribution from parent with corresponding impact on the borrowing.

vi) Expected Credit loss
Under the previous GAAP, provisions against loans and advances were made as per the prudential norms specified by the RBI. In accordance with Ind AS 109,
the Company is required to recognise provisions by applying the expected credit loss model. Accordingly, the Company has reversed all outstanding provisions
created against advances under the previous GAAP and recognised an amount for expected credit losses on its loans and other financial assets with a
corresponding adjustment to profit and loss and consequently, equity.

vii) Deferred tax
Under the Previous GAAP, the deferred tax was accounted based on timing differences impacting the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period. Deferred tax
under Ind AS has been recognised for temporary differences between tax base and the book base of the relevant assets and liabilities. Deferred tax impact has
been considered on the adjustments made on transition to Ind AS.

viii) Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations
Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.¢. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net
defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming
part of the profit or loss for the year.

ix) Business Combination
Under Previous GAAP, acquisition related cost was debited to Goodwill and under Ind AS such acquisition related cost are included in Statement of Profit and
Loss in other Expenses. Fair Valuation of Assets and Liabilities takenover at the time of acquisition also done but having no impact on equity.

x) Interest on NPA
Under Indian GAAP, interest income on NPA was recognised on cash basis, However, under Ind AS interest income is recognised on credit impaired assets by
applying the EIR on amortised cost of such assets net off ECL.

54.C.5 Effect of Ind AS adoption on the statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31,2019

Fantigllis Relti‘l)'::lce Péms Adjustments Ind AS
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities i (53,650.93)  (21,528.82)  (75,179.75)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities i (650.45) (3,042.87) (3,693.32)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities iii 57,265.90 20,040.52 77,306.42
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,964.52 (4,531.17) (1,566.65)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year iv 7,269.61 (1,000.71) 6,268.90
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year v 10,234.13 (5,531.89) 4,702.24

Notes ¢
i)  The adjustments are due to EIR and reclassification from investing to operating activities.
ii) The adjustments are due to reclassification from investing to operating activities.
iii) The adjustments are due to EIR and unamortised discount of commercial papers. )
iv) The adjustments are due to lien marked bank deposits regrouped with bank balances other than above and the impainncgtrgf-‘f)}iﬁk 'fif':pog'
AN )

55. Events after reporting date

There have been no major events which will cause changes to any numbers reported in the financial statements,
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Regulatory disclosures - RBI

56.
The following additional information is disclosed in the terms of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01,2016 as
amended.
The additional disclosure notes required by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) are prepared under Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA), unless otherwise stated.
56.1 Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR) As at As at
March 31,2020 Marck 31,2019
CRAR (%) 25.27% 23.01%
CRAR - Tier [ capital (%) 23.43% 21.44%
CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 1.84% 1.57%
Amount of hybrid debt raised as tier 1I capital 1,509.14 1,509.14
Amount of Subordinated debt raised as tier 1I capital - -
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments - .
#calculated as per RBI notification RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 “Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards” issued by RBI on
March 13, 2020.
"Tier I capital”, "Tier II capital”, "Owned fund" are calculated as defined in Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and notification RBI/2019-20/170 DOR BFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20
“Imptementation of Indian Accounting Standards” issucd by RBI on March 13, 2020.
56.2 Investments As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
o) Value of Investment
(i) Gross value of investments
(a) InIndia 4,650.88 6,703.84
(b) Outside India - -
(ii) Provisions for depreciation
(a) InIndia 8.18 10.07
(b) Outside India - -
(iii) Net value of investments
(a) InlIndia 4,642.70 6,693.77
(b) Outside India ) - -
II) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Opening balance 10.07 10.14
Add : Provisions made during the year 0.70 10.07
Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year {2.59) (10.14)
Closing balance 8.18 10.67
56.3 Derivatives

The Company has not entered into any forward rate agreements, interest rate swaps, exchange traded interest rate derivatives. However Company have entered into Option

Contracts to hedge market linked debentures (For details refer Note 5).
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31, 2020

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

56. Regulatory disclosures - RBI

56.4 Asset liability management

(A) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020

Al Assets
Loans Investments Foreign Currency
Assets
1 day o 7 days 245.13 - -
8 day to 14 days 1,805.59 - -
15 day to 30/31 days (One month) 6,496.86 - -
Over One months to 2 months 7,217.65 - -
Over 2 months up to 3 months 18,278.10 369.15 -
QOver 3 months to 6 months 16,632.23 369.10 -
Over 6 months to 1 year 13,492.80 1,152.49 -
Over 1 year to 3 years 15,914.88 -1,151.96 -
Over 3 years to 5 years 2,353.87 1,500.00 -
Over 5 years 1,951.59 100.00 -
84,388.70 4,642.70 -
Al Liabilities
Borrowings & Debt Deposits # Foreign Currency
Securities Liabilities
1 day to 7 days 0.39 - -
8 day to 14 days 1,850.71 -
15 day to 30/31 days (One month) 4,585.54 256.72
Over One months to 2 months 3,648.46 - -
Over 2 months up to 3 months 7,396.00 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months 4.548.53 - -
Over 6 months to 1 year 21,079.64 - -
Over 1 year to 3 years 26,463.24 B -
Over 3 years to 5 years 2,038.91 - -
Over 5 years - - -
71,611.42 256.72 -
(B) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2019
B.i Assets
Loans * Investments Foreign Currency
Assets
1 day to 7 days 1,253.56 - -
8 day to 14 days 1,345 - -
15 day to 30/31 days (One month) 24,673 3,433 -
Over One months to 2 months 20,662.99 - -
Over 2 months up to 3 months 15,510.11 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months 13,828.73 - -
Over 6 months to 1 year 5,380.62 345.52 -
Over 1 year to 3 years 17,219.39 2,433.63 -
Over 3 years to 5 years 9,185.12 - -
Over 5 years 228.84 482.07 -
1,09,287.84 6,693.77 -
B.ii Liabilities
Borrowings & Debt Deposits # Foreign Currency
Securities Liabilities
1 day to 7 days 1,265 - -
8 day to 14 days - - -
15 day to 30/31 days (One month) 1,868 171 T
Over One months to 2 months 1,125.34 -
Over 2 months up to 3 months 8,705.69 -
Over 3 months to 6 months 14,201.82 100.00
Over 6 months to 1 year 33,039.20 250.00
Over 1 year to 3 years 28,678.70 -
Over 3 years to 5 years 11,891.31 -
Over 5 years - -
1,00,774.88 521.04

# This pertains to inter corporate deposits
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56.
56.5

56.6

56.7

Regulatory disclosures - RBI

Exposures

a)

b)

)

a)

b)

€)

4

€)

g)

h)

Exposure to real estate sector

Asat As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Direct exposure
Residential mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is - -
rented:( Individual housing loans up to Rs.15 lakhs may be shown separately)
Commercial real estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose 10,155.45 6,714.67
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure includes non-fund
based (NFB) limits.
Investments in mortgage backed securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
- Residential 5 -
- Commercial Real Estate - -
Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies - -
(HFCs)
Others - -
10,155.45 6,714.67
Exposure to capital market
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented 1,500.25 3,408.80
mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt
advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment - 2,177.01
in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented
mutual funds
advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity - -
oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security. '
advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or 4,323.09 -
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares
/ convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds ‘does not fully cover the
advances.
secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market - -
makers.
loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean - -
basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources
bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - -
all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) - -
others (not covered above) 3,150.63 3,295.04
8,973.97 8,880.85

Details of financing of parent company products:

Details of financing of parent company products: Nil (Previous year : Nil)

Details of single borrower limit and borrower group limit exceeded by the Company:

During the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, the Company’s credit exposure to single borrow

the RBI. '

ers and group borrowers were within the limits prescribed b
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56.12

56,13

56.14

56.15

Regulatory disclosures - RBI

Unsecured advances

The portfolio of Company includes unsecured loans the details of which are provided in Note 6. During the year, the Company has not given any advance against collateral

of rights, licenses, authority, etc. (Previous year : Nil).

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company is registered with following other financial sector regulators (Financial regulators as described by Ministry of Finance):

i)  Ministry of Corporate Affairs
Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators- Rs.Ni} (Previous year - Rs. Nil)

Related party transactions

All material transactions with related parties are reflected in Note 41

Details of transaction with non executive directors - Rs. Nil {(Previous year - Rs. Nil)

Non-Executive Directors have no pecuniary relationship with the Company, except receiving sitting fees for the meetings attended.

Provisions and contingencies

As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Breakup of provisions and contingencics shown under the head other expenses in

the Statement of Profit and loss

Impairment allowance on Investment (1.88) (0.07)

Provision towards Stage 3 223.85 877.58

Provision made towards Income tax - 109.48

Provision for Stage 1/Stage 2 Assets including restructured and others (259.02) 308.42

Other Provision and Contingencies * 180.80 159.32

*Other provisions and contingencies

Provision for gratuity expense 30.23 14.28

Provision for leave encashment expense (30.69) 0.47

Provision for ESOP 181.26 14457

Total 180.80 159.32
Draw down from reserves

During the current year the Company has not drawn from any reserve. (Previous year : Nil)
Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPA assets

Asat As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

A. Concentration of advances

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 36,642.76 33,807.22

% of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances 42.76% 30.56%
B. Concentration of exposures

Total Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / Customers 38,191.84 33,807.22

% of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / Customers to Total Advances 43.64% 30.51%
C. Concentration of NPA Advances

Total Exposures to top Four NPA Assets 1,916.81 1,703.38
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56.

56.15

56,16

56.17

56,18

Regulatory disclosures - RBI

Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPA assets (Continued)

D. Sector-wise NPA Assets % of NPA assets to Total Advances in that
sector
As at As at
Sectors March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Agriculture & allied activities - -
MSME - .
Corporate borrowers 2.22% 2.06%
Services - -
Unsecured loans - Bill discounting 2.08% 0.96%

Auto loans

Other loans

The amount of NPAs and advances considered while calculating the above percentages are excluding notional Ind AS adjustment.

E. Concentration of deposits

The Company is a Non Deposit Accepting Systemically Important NBFC. Accordingly, the Company has not accepted any deposits during the current and previous

year. Also there are no outstanding deposits from carlier years (Previous Year : Nil).

Movement in non-performing assets (NPAs)

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of Stage 3 assets net of provision (Also refer note 6.b)

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(i) Net NPAs to net advances (%) 0.96% 0.75%
(ii) Movement of NPAs (gross)
(a) Opening balance 1,703.38 -
(b) Additions during the year 213.43 1,703.38
(c) Reductions during the year* -
(d) Closing balance 1,916.81 1,703.38
(iii) Movement of net NPAs
(a) Opening balance 825.80 -
(b) Additions during the year - 825.80
(¢) Reductions during the year* (10.42) -
(d) Closing balance 815.38 825.80
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets)
(a) Opening Balance 877.58 -
(b) Additions during the year 223.85 877.58
(c) Write off/ write back of excess provision* - -
(d) Closing balance 1,101.43 877.58
Customer complaints For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil Nil
if) No. of complaints received during the year 2 Nil
iif)  No. of complaints redressed during the year 2 Nil
iv)  No. of complaints pending at the end of the year Nil Nil
Rating assigned by credit rating agencies
. . As at As at
Instruments Credit Rating Agency March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Bank Loan Long-term CARE CARE A -; Negative CARE A -; Stable
Commercial Paper CARE CARE Al+ (CE) CARE Al+ (SO)
Commercial Paper ICRA ICRA Al+ (CE)
Long Term Market Linked Debentures CARE CARE PP-MLD A-; CARE PP-MLD A-,

Note : There has been no change in the Credit Rating assigned during the year. Only change has been in the outlook by CARE Rating on the Bank Loal

from A - (Stable) to A - (Negative) in October 2019

Negative
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56. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

56.19 Disclosures relating to assignment and securitisation
The information on direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of assets assigned under par structure and
premium structure is given below:

56.19.1  The Company has not entered into any securitisation transactions during the current year. (Previous year : Nil)

56.19.2  Outstanding amount of assigned assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored
The information on direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of assets assigned under par structure is
given below:
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
1 No. of transactions assigned by the Company 4.00 -
2 Total amount outstanding 2,199.32 -
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the Company to comply with MRR as on the date of
(a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures
First foss : - -
Others - -
(b) On-Balance Sheet exposures
First loss - -
Others 431.18 -
4 Amount of exposures to assigned transaction other than MRR
(a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures
(i) Exposure to own securitisations
First loss - -
Loss - -
(ii) Exposure to third party securitisations )
First loss - -
Others - -
(b) On-Balance Sheet exposures
(1) Exposure to own securitisations
First loss - -
Others - -
(ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss S =
Others = 5
Total outstanding amounts and MRR as on the date of the balance sheet are excluding notional Ind AS adjustments.

Neo. Particulars

The information on direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of assets assigned under premium
structure is given below:

T Particulars © Asat As at
No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

1 No. of transactions assigned by the Company 5 -
2 Total amount outstanding . . -

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the Company to comply with MRR as on the date of
(a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures
First loss i - -
Others - -
(b) On-Balance Sheet exposures
First loss - N
Others 5 -
4 Amount of exposures to assigned transaction other than MRR
(a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures
(1) Exposure to own securitisations
First loss = -
Loss o O
(ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss - -
Others - -
(b) On-Balance Sheet exposures
(1) Exposure to own securitisations
First loss
Others
(ii)Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss
Others
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56.19.3

56.19.4

56.20

56.21

56.22

Regulatmy disclosures - RBI (Continued)

Details of financial assets sold to securitisation/reconstruction company for asset reconstruction
The Company has not sold any financial assets to securitisation/reconstruction company for asset reconstruction during the year ended March 31,
2020 and March 31, 2019.

Details of assignment transactions undertaken by the Company

Particulars Agat At
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
i) No. of accounts 1t -
ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 3,533.69 -
1ii) Aggregate consideration - 2,990.70 -
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years - -
v) Aggregate gain/(loss) over net book value -1.91 -

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold by the Company
The Company has neither purchased nor sold non performing assets during the year ended March 31, 2020 (Previous year : refer note 6.1)

Disclosure of Restructured Accounts
(as required by RBI guidelines under reference DNBS. CO. PD. No. 367 /03.10.01 / 2013-14 dated January 23, 2014)
No loan have been restructured during the year. (Previous year: Nil)

Disclosure as per the circular no DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17, 2020 issued by Reserve Bank of India on "COVID 19
regulatory package - Asset Classification and provisioning"
For the year ended March 31, 2020

1) Amounts in SMA/overdue categories where moratorium/deferment was extended in terms of paragraph 2 and 3 of the above circular
SMA category Amount in Lakhs
SMA 0 7.640.00
SMA 1 1,485.89
SMA 2 499.43
Total 9,625.32
i) Respective amount where asset classification benefit is extended : Rs.9,625.32 lakhs

iii) Provisions made during quarter ended March 31, 2020 in terms of paragraph 5 of the above circular :
The provision made by the Company as per the ECL model is arrived at less than the provision required as per IRACP norms which is
inclusive of additional 5% provision on loans amounting to Rs 481.27 Lakhs as per above circular. In accordance with the above circular,
the differential amount has been transferred to Impairment reserve.

iv) Provisions adjusted against the respective accounting periods for slippages and residual provisions in terms of paragraph 6 of the above
circular : Not applicable
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56. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

56.23 Comparison of Regulatory Provision for NPA and Impairment Provision as per Ind AS

ARG e il Gross Carryin Loss Allowances Provisions Difference
rying (Provisions) as Net Carrying % between IndAS
Amount as per Ind X required as per -
as per IndAS AS required under Amount IRACP norms 109 provisions and
as per RBI Norms 109 Ind AS 109 IRACP norms
Performing
Standard Stage-1 80,484.10 179.52 80,304.58 704.86 (525.34)
Stage-2 3,284.57 15.82 3,268.75 112.52 (96.70)
Sub total ‘ 83,768.67 195.34 83,573.33 817.38 (622.04)
Non Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage-3 154.13 98.85 5528 15.21 83.64
Doubtful
up to 1 year Stage-3 1,762.68 1,002.58 760.10 1,030.71 (28.13)
1to 3 Years Stage-3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage-3 - - . - .
Sub total for Doubtful 1,762.68 1,002.58 760.10 1,030.71 (28.13)
Loss Stage-3 - - ) - - -
Subtotal for NPA 1,916,81 1,101.43 815.38 1,045.92 55.51
Loan in the Nature of Debentures Stage-1 3,050.63 8.18 3,042.45 12.30 (4.12)
Other items Stage-2 - - - - -
Other items Stage-3 - - - - .
Stage-1 83,534.73 187.70 83,347.03 717.16 (529.46)
Stage-2 3,284.57 15.82 3,268.75 112.52 (96.70)
Total
Stage-3 1,916.81 1,101.43 815,38 1,045.92 55.51

Total 88,736.11 1,304.95 87,431.16 1,875.60 (570.65)
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56. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

56.24 Disclosure on liquidity risk under RBI circular no. RBY/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019 on Liquidity Risk
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies from March 31, 2020 onwards
56.24.a Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (borrowings, debt securities)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020
No. of Significant Counterparties* 12.00
Amount (2 in lakh)# 27,609.37
Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits 0%
Percentage of funding concentration to total liabilities 35.62%

*Significant counterparty is as defined in RBI Circular RB1/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.N0.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4 November 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management
Framework for Non Banking Financial Compauies and Core Investment Companies.

56.24.b Top 20 large deposits
Not applicable

56.24.c Top 10 Borrowings

Particul As at
Articn’ary March 31, 2020
Total amount of top 10 borrowings (¥ in lakh)# 25,843.37
Percentage of amount of top 10 borrowings 10 total borrowings 35.771%
56.24.d Fuading concentration based on significant instrument / product**:
As at March 31, 2020
@,
Particulars % in lakh /n o'f"I:otal
liabilities #
a) Market linked non-convertible debentures 48,693.35 62.82%
by Term loan 17,497.85 22.57%
¢j Commercial paper 1,873.77 2.42%
d) Hybrid debt ) 1,509.14 1.95%
e} Bank overdraft 2,037.31 2.63%

**Significant instrument/product is as defined in RBI Circular RBL/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on Liquidity Risk
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies.
# Total Liabilities represents total liabilities as per balance sheet less total equity

56.24.¢ Stock Ratios:

Particuiars clsat
March 31,2020

i)  Commercial Papers to Total Liabilities 242%
ii) Commercial Papers to Total Assets 1.74%
iii) Commercial Papers to Public funds*** 2.66%
iv) NCD(Original Maturity < lyrs.) to Total Liabilities Nil
v)  NCIX(Original Maturity < lyrs.) to Total Assets Nil
vi) NCD(Original Maturity < lyrs.) to Public funds*** Nil
vii) Other Short Tenn Liabilities to Total Liabilities ## 60.44%
viii) Other Short Term Liabilities to Total Assets ### 43.60%
ix) Other Short Term Liabilities to Public funds*** ## 66.59%
x) Short Term Assets to Total Liabilities ### 95.38%
xi) Short Term Assets to Short Terin Liabilities ### 157.82%
xii) Short Tenn Assets to Total Assets ### 68.81%

*** Public funds is as defined in Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016,

# All the above numbers are excluding notional Ind AS adjustments.
## Other short term liabilities include all the financial liabilities maturing within next 12 months other than Commercial Paper and NCDs
### Short Term Assets includes all the Financial Assets recoverable within next 12 months

The above ratios reflect the strength of the Company as the short term liabilities are adequately funded by short term assets indicating the financial stability of the
organisation. .

56.24.F Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management:

are held at periodic intervals, At the apex level, the Management Committee (ManCo), a sub-committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, overseey
management. The ManCo subsequenily updates the Board of Directors on the same,
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56. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

56.25 Overseas assets
The Company did not have any Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: Nil).

56.26 Reperting of Frauds
The Company has not reported any fraud during the current year ( Previous year : NIL)

57. Previous year previous GAAP figures have been regrouped / reclassified to make them comparable with Ind AS presentation.

As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP Centrum Financial Services Limited
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ened March 31,2020

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)
1. Regulatory disclosures - RBI

1.21 Schedule to the Balance Sheet of “Centrum Financial Services Limited” (as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non- Deposit
Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Liabilities side : Amount Amount overdue Total Amount outstanding| Amount overdue Total
outstanding

1) Loans and advances availed by the non- banking|
fi ial inclusive of i accrued thereon

but not paid:

(@) Debentures : Secured - - 5 - -
: Unsecured 1,509.14 - 1,509.14 1,509.14 - 1,509.14
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)

() Deferred credits - - S 5 5 -

(¢©) Term loans 1743212 o 1743212 62,183.71 - 62,183.71
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 256.72 - 256.72 521.04 - 521.04
(&) Commercial paper 1,873.77 - 1,873.77 - - -

(f) Public deposits S S = - -
(g Vehicle loan 65.73 - 65.73 12.53 - 12,53
() Other loans (Borrowings) 2,037.31 - 2,037.31 1,581.87 - 1,581.87

Assets side :
2) Break-up of loans and advances including bills
receivables [other than those included in (4) below]

(a) Secured 43,118.59 - 43,118.59 48,890.36 - 48,890.36
(b) Unsecured 42,566.88 - 42,566.88 61,723.33 - 61,723.33
Total 85,685.47 - 85,685.47 1,10,613.69 - 1,10,613.69

3) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other
assets counting towards AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debiors:

(a) Financial lease 5 5 - - - -
(b) Operating lease - Refer note 5 below - S 5 . s -

(i) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

(a) Assets on hire N 5 - - - R
(b) Repossessed assets & 5 5 - - R
(i) Other loans counting towards AFC activitics -

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed - - S 5 5 -

(b} Loans other than (a) above S 5 - - - R

4) Break-up of investments ;
Current investments ;
1. Quoted

(i) Shares:  (a) Equity 18.00 - 18.00 3,474.00 - 3,474.00
(b) Preference - - - s & -
(ify Debentures and bonds S s - - - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds S S & - - -
(iv) Government securities - - S 5 - -
(v) Others (please specify) N s - - - -
2. Unquoted -
(i) Shares:  (2) Equity - E - - - -
(b) Preference - - 5 B - -

(1) Debentures and bonds 2,960.00 - 2,960.00 2,850.00 - 2,850.00
(iii) Units of mutual funds S 5 5 = - -
(iv) Government securities - - B s s -

(v) Others (security receipts) 5 = s - - R
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1.
1.21

Regulatory disclosures - RBI

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of “Cenirum Financial Services Limited” (as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non- Deposit
Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Amount
outstanding

Amount overdue

Total

Amount di

Amount d

Total

Long term investments ¢
1. Quoted

(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

(i) Debentures and bonds

(i) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government securities

(v) Others (please specify)
2. Unquoted

(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(i) Debentures and bonds

(1) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government securities

(v) Others (Investment and investment property)

1,500.00

3462.54

1,500.00

3,462.54

3,342.17

3,342.17

5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed
as in (2) and (3) above:

Amount net of provision (Refer note 22)

Amount net of provision (Refer note 22)

Category Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries S & 5 - B i
(b) Companies in the same group 6,608.74 6,608.74 - - -
2. Other than related partes 42,543.75 35,642.06 78,185.81 1,12,743.80 - 1,12,743.80
Total 42,543.75 42,250.80 . 84,794.55 1,12,743.80 - 1,12,743.80
6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments
(current and long term) in shares and securities (both
quoted and unquoted)
Category Market Value / | Book Value (Net of| Total Market Value / Book Value (Net Total
Break up or fair provisions) Break up of fair of provisions)
value or NAV value or NAV
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries 5 5 - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 - - o
2. Other than related parties 100.25 100.25 100.25 7,393.34 7,393.34 7,393.34
Total 1,600.25 100.25 1,700.50 7,393.34 7,393.34 14,786.68
7) Other Information
Particulars Amount Amount Total Amount Amount Total
(i) Gross non- performing assets
(a) Related parties - - - o - -
(b) Other than related parties 1,916.81 = 1,916.81 1,703.38 S 1,703.38
(1i) Net non- performing assets o
(a) Related parties - - - - - -
(b) Other than related parties 815.38 - 815.38 825.80 - 825.80

(iti) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Notes:

1. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions,

2015 whichever is applicable.

2. All accounting standards and guidance notes issued by ICAI are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt.

3. In tespect of investment in property, fair value has been taken on account of amalgamation. Bond and quoted equity shares have been valued as per prevailing market standards.

The figures are not netted with provision against standard assets as it is not a specific provision.




